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(Amounts in '000)

Restated

June-20 June-21 December-21 December-22 December-23 December-24

BALANCE SHEET

Authorized Capital 500,000          500,000          500,000           500,000           500,000           500,000           

Equity:

Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up Capital 340,200          340,200          340,200           340,200           340,200           340,200           

Reserves 216,693          218,177          218,177           218,177           218,177           218,177           

Subordinated Funds -                 -                 -                   -                   500,000           500,000           

Un-appropriated Profit (419,594)        (413,658)        (471,759)          (570,903)          (680,258)          (832,440)          

Total 137,298          144,719          86,618             (12,526)            378,119           225,937           

Liabilities:

Redeemable Capital 1,013,549       1,014,102       1,603,000        1,825,000        1,485,000        1,485,000        

Musharikah Arrangements 648,739          535,129          131,101           -                   -                   

Accrued, Deferred & Other Liabilities 284,388          254,069          269,688           218,842           326,628           281,345           

Total 1,946,675       1,803,299       2,003,789        2,043,842        1,811,628        1,766,345        

Total Equity & Liabilities 2,083,974       1,948,018       2,090,407        2,031,316        2,189,747        1,992,282        

Operating Assets:

Ijarah Assets 509,909          450,440          331,566           237,096           148,068           185,228           

Defferred tax 64,399            64,399            64,399             61,046             109,658           120,061           

Musharikah Investment 650,888          582,556          713,093           843,941           778,624           1,075,327        

Morabaha Investment 305,443          251,927          184,804           249,948           245,426           180,071           

Sub Total 1,530,639       1,349,321       1,293,861        1,392,031        1,281,776        1,560,687        

Other Assets:

Assets in own use 3,108              3,217              3,415               4,695               5,122               3,960               

Investment in Subsidiary 76,500            76,500            76,500             76,500             -                   

Deposits, Prepayments & other receivables 448,624          407,232          581,353           531,414           669,304           404,555           

Cash & Bank Balances 25,103            111,748          135,278           26,676             233,545           23,080             

Sub Total 553,335          598,697          796,546           639,285           907,971           431,595           

Total Assets 2,083,974       1,948,018       2,090,408        2,031,316        2,189,747        1,992,282        

PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT

Operating Income 187,385          139,449          63,854        150,676      244,357      276,289      

Other Income 10,700            13,573            6,492               60,832             86,962             128,363           

Total Income 198,084          153,023          70,346             211,508           331,319           404,652           

Operating Expenses 45,719            24,877            26,722             69,596        79,992             98,463             

Financial Charges 207,676          119,205          55,318             220,687           358,391           370,612           

Management Fee -                 -                 -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Expenses 253,395          144,082          82,040             290,283           438,383           469,075           

Profit before Taxation (55,311)          8,941              (1,352)              (81,344)            (153,305)          (82,775)            

Taxation -                 (1,520)            -                   6,200               (41,743)            (6,342)              

Profit for the year (55,311)          7,421              (1,352)              (87,544)            (111,562)          (76,433)            

DISTRIBUTION:

Cash Dividend(%) -                 -                 -                   -                   -                   

Bonus (%) -                 -                 -                   -                   -                   

RATIOS:

Breakup Value (Rs.) 4.04                4.25                2.55                 (0.37)                11.11               6.64                 

Earning per Certificate (Rs.) (1.63)              0.22                -                   -                   -                   -                   

Return on Equity (Rs.) (40.29)            5.13                N-A N-A N-A N-A



Gender Pay Gap Statement 

 

First Punjab Modaraba 

 

Gender Pay Gap statement under Securi�es and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) Circular 10 of 

2024. 

Following is gender pay gap calculated for the year ended December 31, 2024. 

 

I. Mean Gender Pay Gap:  38.64% 

 

II. Median Gender Pay Gap: 27.20% 

 

III. Any other data/details as deemed relevant: The above ra�os reflect the overall employee 

gender pay gap across the organiza�on. The Modaraba ensures equitable compensa�on for the 

female members in their respec�ve roles based on experience, qualifica�on, and performance. 

 

 

 

For and on behalf of the Board Directors 

 

 

       Asim Jahangir Seth 
       Chief Execu�ve Officer 
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Dear Valued Certificate Holders, 

I am pleased to present this report to our esteemed Certificate Holders, highlighting the affairs 

and performance of First Punjab Modaraba (FPM) for the financial year ended December 31, 

2024.  

During the year under review, the SBP initiated a gradual reduction in its policy rate starting 

June 2024, bringing it down to a range of 13%–15% by the end of the year, compared to 

22% at the close of 2023. The said reduction is expected to be followed by downward repricing 

of modaraba’s funding arrangements.  

During the reporting period, your Modaraba achieved several key milestones aimed at 

strengthening its financial and operational framework. One of the most significant 

developments was the successful adoption of International Financial Reporting Standard – 9 

(IFRS – 9), which enhances the transparency and accuracy of our financial reporting, 

particularly in the assessment of credit risk and provisioning. In addition, Modaraba made 

notable progress in the recovery of chronic non-performing loans, reflecting our firm 

commitment to asset quality and prudent risk management. 

Throughout the fiscal year 2024, the performance and effectiveness of the Board have been 

thoroughly evaluated and deemed satisfactory. This assessment covered key areas, including 

alignment with Modaraba’s vision, mission and core values, active participation in strategic 

planning and vigilant oversight of business operations. 

The Board continues to diligently discharge its responsibilities in accordance with the 

Modaraba Ordinance, the Companies Act and applicable Corporate Governance Regulations. 

It plays an active role in guiding strategic direction, monitoring management performance 

and overseeing key risk areas. All Directors, including Independent Directors, demonstrate 

strong engagement and make meaningful contributions to the decision-making process. 

Looking ahead, the Board remains fully prepared to navigate future challenges and capitalize 

on emerging opportunities for sustainability. Re-strategizing to explore new, niche avenues 

where Modaraba can play a more prominent role as compared to other modaraba companies 

will be area of focus; where different revenue streams are generated based upon providing 

services rather than increasing its financing book. 

I would like to express my sincere gratitude to our parent company The Bank of Punjab, 

valued customers and all stakeholders for their continued support. A special acknowledgment 

is extended to the Registrar Modaraba for his continued guidance and support. I also 

commend each member of the Board for their unwavering dedication and commitment in 

upholding the vision and values of Modaraba. 

Yours Sincerely, 

 

 

_____________________ 
Ijaz Ur Rehman Qureshi 
June 30, 2025 
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The Board of Directors of Punjab Modaraba Services (Private) Limited, the Management Company 
of First Punjab Modaraba, takes great pleasure in presen�ng Audited Financial Statements of First 
Punjab Modaraba for fiscal year ended on December 31, 2024, accompanied by the Auditors' 
Report. 
 

Economic Outlook & Prospects  
In 2024, Pakistan's economy showed significant improvement. Headline infla�on dropped to 4.1% 
in December, down from 38% in May 2023, that eventually prompted the SBP to reduce interest 
rates from June 2024. 
  
Pakistan's GDP growth for FY 2024 rebounds to 2.5% from a contrac�on of 0.22% in 2023. The 
agriculture sector grew by 6.2% the highest in 2 decades was pivotal to economic recovery, 
supported by 3% growth in the manufacturing and 2 % growth in the services sectors. The SBP 
reduced the policy rate from 22% to 13% by the end of 2024, suppor�ng investor confidence and a 
surge in stock market ac�vity, with the KSE 100 Index gaining 84%.  
 
Financial Highlights  
The summarized financial results of your modaraba are as follows: 

 

The year under review was full of challenges such as exorbitant financial cost �ed with long term 
placements, resump�on of business from previous year, por�olio management in high profit rate 
scenario and implementa�on of Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standard – 9, Financial 
Instruments. While economy, in general, benefi�ng reducing interest rate scenarios, the Modarba 
was adversely affected. By the Grace of God, the Modaraba was successful in handling all challenges, 
however, the impact of steep financial cost and implementa�on of IFRS-9 remained major 
contributors towards nega�ve bo�om line. As fully explained in note 4.22 to financial statements, 
new forward-looking approach of the said standard has given rise to a substan�al amount of 
provision expense for the year under review as well as nega�ve impact in retained earnings.  
 
The total assets base stood at Rs. 1,975.578 million, reflec�ng stability, while efforts to streamline 
opera�ons are evident in controlled administra�ve expenses and focused resource alloca�on.  
Overall, while challenges remain, the upward trend in revenue and reduc�on in core losses highlight 
a positive shi� in financial direc�on, laying the founda�on for improved performance in the coming 
years. 
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Par�culars 
FY 2024  FY 2023  

Rupees in million 
Gross Revenue  404.652  331.319 
Administra�ve Expenses  (98.462)  (79.992) 
Finance costs (370.612)  (358.390) 
Provisions for doub�ul receivables (9.326)  (46.241) 

Loss before income tax and levies  (73.657)  (153.305) 
Income tax and levies (20.708)  41.744 

Loss a�er tax (94.366)  (111.561) 
Other comprehensive income 0.201  2.206 

Total income  (94.165)  (109.355) 

    
Earnings per cer�ficate (Rupee) (2.77)  (3.28) 



Profit distribution and transfer to reserves: 
Owing to loss during the year, no dividend was declared and accordingly, no amount was transferred 
to reserves by the Board. 
 

Future Strategy  
The Management being cognizant of challenges on hand, has devised comprehensive strategy going 
forward as follows: 
 
Increase level of Support Via Subordinated Funds 
Given the current situa�on, the Management has convinced its sponsoring bank to replace and 
further increase the subordinated fund amount on terms more beneficial for the Modaraba. We are 
confident that the Modaraba will also be able to draw benefit in reduced interest rate scenario not 
only on its funding side but will also be able to transfer such benefit to our valued customers, going 
forward. 
 
Recovery from Non-Earning Assets 
The major por�on of non-remunera�ve assets comprises chronic NPLs. The Management is making 
all out efforts for recoveries through li�ga�on, as well as se�lement efforts outside Courts. These 
strenuous efforts resulted in cash recovery of PKR 96 million during year under review, while further 
recoveries are expected in coming years. 
 
Diversifica�on Of Business Model On Long Term Basis  
The Management is working to shift its focus towards financing lesser riskier assets / clients. At the 
same �me, the Management is exploring new niche avenues where Modaraba can play a more 
prominent role as compared to other modaraba companies. Going forward, the Management would 
prefer that Modaraba’s business model should evolve from a tradi�onal Islamic Financing Company 
into a mul�-func�onal and impact-driven modaraba, where different revenue streams are 
generated based upon providing services rather than increasing its financing book.  
 
Financial Strength Ra�ng  
We are pleased to share that the Pakistan Credit Ra�ng Agency (Pvt.) Limited (PACRA) has 
reaffirmed the Modaraba’s long-term ra�ng of “A-” and short-term ra�ng of “A2” with a “Stable” 
outlook. This ra�ng assessment stems from PACRA's thorough annual and interim reviews, which 
analyze a range of factors and indicators concerning Modaraba’s financial strength, performance, 
and outlook.  
 

Corporate & Financial Repor�ng Framework  
The Modaraba has complied with all the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance as 
required by the lis�ng regula�ons. Accordingly, the Directors are pleased to confirm the following:  

 
a) The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Modaraba, present its state 

of affairs fairly, the result of its opera�ons, cash flow and changes in equity;  
b) Proper books of account of the Modaraba have been maintained; 
c) Appropriate accoun�ng policies have been consistently applied in prepara�on of financial 

statements and accoun�ng es�mates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;  
d) Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in 

preparation of financial statements and any departures there from have been adequately 
disclosed and explained; 

e) The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effec�vely implemented and 
monitored;  

f) There are no significant doubts upon the Modaraba’s ability to con�nue as a going concern.  
g) There were no principal risks or uncertain�es facing the Modaraba. 
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h) There were no significant changes concerning the nature of business of the Modaraba.  
i) There has been no material departure from the best prac�ces of corporate governance as 

detailed in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regula�ons, 2019 (the 
Regulations) expect for those men�oned in the statement of compliance. 

j) There were no material changes and commitments affec�ng the financial posi�on of the 
Modaraba which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Modaraba to 
which the financial statement relates and the date of the report.  

k) The Board of directors and its management team are fully determined to move the 
Modaraba from present situa�on of uncertain�es and for this a strategic plan has been 
developed, which is expected to bring posi�ve improvements in the foreseeable future.  

l) Key opera�ng and financial data for last six years, Pa�ern of holding by the cer�ficate 
holders and addi�onal related informa�on is annexed. 

m) During the year,  six mee�ngs of the Board of Directors and four mee�ngs of Audit 
Committee were held separately. A�endance by each Director and member of Audit 
Committee is annexed. 

n) Majority of the members of the Audit Commi�ee are independent, while all are non-
executive directors. 

o) There are no outstanding demands of statutory payments on account of taxes, du�es, levies 
and charges as at 31 December 2024, except for those disclosed in financial statements. 

p) The value of investments of the staff provident fund, based on management accounts, was 
Rs. 9,179,305 as at December 31, 2024. 

 

Compliance with Code of Corporate Governance  
The Company has diligently adhered to the requirements outlined in the Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regula�ons, 2019, during the year ending on December 31, 2024. Any 
excep�ons to these requirements have been transparently disclosed in the Statement of 
Compliance with the Best Prac�ces of Corporate Governance. 
 

Composition of the Board The seven-member Board of Directors ensures statutory representa�on 
across director categories, as mandated by the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2019. They make strategic decisions on vital management ma�ers, execu�ng 
important business ac�vi�es while adhering to established criteria and assessing risks. The Board 
also oversees guidelines to ensure compliance.  
 

1. The total number of directors was seven (07) comprising of six (06) male and one (01) female 
director. 

2. The Board included one (01) execu�ve, and six (06) non-executive directors out of whom 
two (02) were independent directors. 

3. The composi�on of Board of directors (the Board) is as follows: 
 

Sr # Name of Director Type 

1 Mr. Imran Basir  Independent Director 

2 Ms. Samina Afsar Independent/Female Director 

3 Mr. Nadeem Amir  Chairman/Non-Executive Director 

4 Mr. Ijaz Ur Rehman Qureshi  Non-Executive Director 

5 Mr. Umar Iqbal Sheikh Non-Executive Director 

6 Mr. Khawar Shahid Ansari  Non-Executive Director 

7 Mr. Amir Malik*  CEO/Executive Director 

8 Mr. Mudassar Kasier Pal**  CEO/Executive Director 

9 Mr. Asim Jahangir Seth** * CEO/Executive Director 
*The service contract of Mr. Amir Malik expired on April 28, 2024. 
**Mr. Mudassar Kasier Pal was appointed on October 22, 2024 and subsequently resigned on  
    February 10, 2025 
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***Mr. Asim Jahangir Seth was appointed on March 10, 2025. 
 
 

 
Board Mee�ngs & A�endance  
During the year six meetings of the Board of Directors were held, a�endance by each director is as 
follows: 
 

Sr # Name of director 
No. of mee�ngs 

a�ended 

1 Mr. Imran Basir  5 

2 Ms. Samina Afsar 4 

3 Mr. Nadeem Amir  5 

4 Mr. Ijaz Ur Rehman Qureshi  6 

5 Mr. Umar Iqbal Sheikh  6 

6 Mr. Khawar Shahid Ansari  4 

7 Mr. Amir Malik*  1 

8 Mr. Mudassar Kasier Pal** 1 
 
*The service contract of Mr. Amir Malik expired on April 28, 2024. 
**Mr. Mudassar Kasier Pal was appointed on October 22, 2024 and subsequently resigned on  
    February 10, 2025 

 
The Board of Directors has established Audit Commi�ee, Human Resource Commi�ee and Risk 
Management Commi�ee in compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance. 
 
Audit Commi�ee Mee�ngs & A�endance  
During the year four meetings of the Audit Committee were held, a�endance by each director is as 
follows: 
 

Sr # Name of director 
No. of mee�ngs 

a�ended 

1 Mr. Imran Bashir  – Chairman 4 

2 Mr. Ijaz Ur Rehman Qureshi -  Member  4 

3 Ms. Samina Afsar – Member 1 

 
Human Resource Commi�ee Mee�ngs & A�endance  
During the year one mee�ng of the Human Resource Committee was held, a�endance by each 
director is as follows: 
 

Sr # Name of director 
No. of mee�ngs 

a�ended 

1 Mr. Imran Bashir  1 

2 Mr. Ijaz Ur Rehman Qureshi  1 

3 Ms. Samina Afsar 1 

4 Mr. Umer Iqbal Sheikh 1 

5 Mr. Mudassar Kaiser Pal 1 

 
Related Party Transac�ons  
All transactions with related par�es during the financial year ended December 31, 2024, were 
me�culously presented to the Audit Commi�ee and the Board for comprehensive review and 
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approval. The Audit Commi�ee thoroughly evaluated these transac�ons to ensure compliance with 
the approved transfer pricing methods and the Board-endorsed policy for related par�es. 
 
 
Role of Cer�ficate Holders  
With a strong commitment to transparency and accountability, the Board ensures that the 
Modaraba’s esteemed cer�ficate holders are well -informed about significant developments 
affec�ng the Modaraba’s overall state of affairs. To achieve this, comprehensi ve informa�on is 
provided to the cer�ficate holders through quarterly, half -yearly, and annual reports.  
 
The Board high values the ac�ve par�cipa�on of cer�ficate holders during the annual review 
mee�ng, as it serves as a crucial pla�orm for fostering high level of accountability and ensuring that 
their valuable insights are taken into considera�on. 
 
Statutory Auditors  
The re�ring auditors M/s. Kreston Hyder Bhimji & Co., Chartered Accountants are eligible for  
re-appointment for the year ending December 31, 2025. 

 
Statement of Ethics & Business Prac�ce  
The Board has adopted a Code of Conduct that defines essen�al values related to lawful and ethical 
business prac�ces. Each employee has received a copy of this code and is expected to maintain the 
highest standards of integrity and fairness when dealing with customers, colleagues, and regulatory 
authorities. This Code of Conduct is a key part of the Modaraba’s compliance framework, fostering 
a culture of ethical behavior across the organiza�on.   
Social Ethics & Environmental Responsibili�es  
The Board is highly conscious of social, ethical, and environmental issues, recognizing their 
importance in the public interest. Commi�ed to corporate responsibility, the Board ac�vely plans 
for con�nued involvement in these areas. By proac�vely addressing social, ethical, and 
environmental concerns, the Board aims to posi�vely impact society and the environment while 
upholding the Modaraba’s values and principles.  
 
Chairman Review  
The enclosed Chairman’s review offers a detailed evalua�on of the Modaraba’s performance for the 
year ending December 31, 2024, along with future outlook insights. The Board of Directors fully 
supports the review’s content, confirming it reflects the Board’s assessment of the Modaraba’s 
performance and its vision for the future. 
 
 
Diversity Diversity is one of the core values of the Company on which we put our strong belief along 
with the con�nuous collabora�on & communica�on among the employees, while respec�ng the 
differences of the diverse workforce that includes but is not limited to  people of varying gender, 
ethnicity, na�onal origin, caste, creed, age, religion, cultural background, languages, educa�onal 
background, abili�es, and etc. In favor of ethical prac�ce, we emphasis on the fair treatment of 
employees irrespec�ve of their background and restrict discrimination. Further, the management 
ensures that talent hunt programs must reflect that we are an equal opportunity employer in all areas 
that strives to embrace a work environment constructed on the premise of gender and diversity equity. 
There is no gender-based pay gap. Our vision to promote Diversity, Equity and  Inclusion is as under: 
 
Crea�ng a work environment and impac�ng communi�es where Diversity Thrives, Equity Prevails and 
Inclusion Unites, Nurturing a work culture that embraces all genera�ons, values a broad spectrum of 
ideas and integrates them within the organiza�on 
 
The management of the Company has always remained commi�ed to promo�ng diversity in the 
workplace and female representa�on in all departments and has taken several ini�a�ves to progress.  
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____________________      ____________________  
 Asim Jahangir Seth  Imran Bashir  
 Chief Executive Officer  Director  
 
Lahore: June 30, 2025 
 
 

The opera�ng data for six (06) years is annexed to this report.  
 
 
 
Pa�ern of cer�ficate holding  
The detailed pa�ern of cer�ficate holding as required under the Code of Corporate Governance is 
annexed to this report. 
 
There has been no trading in the cer�ficates of Modaraba by any of its Directors, CEO, CFO, 
Company Secretary or their spouses and minor children unless specified in the financial statements. 
 
Acknowledgement  
The Board remains thankful to Securi�es and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, Registrar 
Modaraba, State Bank of Pakistan, and NBFCs & Modaraba Associa�on of Pakistan for providing us 
their usual support and guidance.  
 
The Board appreciates and pays gra�tude to the cer�ficate holders and customers for entrus�ng 
their confidence on us and we assure them to maintain adequate internal controls, providing 
personalized services and also an ideal environment of good corporate governance in all areas of 
the activi�es. 
 
Finally, the Board appreciates the dedica�on and hard work put in by the management and all staff 
members of First Punjab Modaraba. 
 

For and on behalf of the Board 
 

Rela�onship with Stake Holders  
The Modaraba is commi�ed to fostering mutually beneficial rela�onships with all stakeholders, 
including the Pakistan Stock Exchange, the Securi�es and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), 
and other valued business partners. We are pleased to report that, Alhamdulillah, our relationships 
with all stakeholders have remained posi�ve and harmonious throughout the period. This ongoing 
collabora�on and support play a crucial role in the Modaraba’s success and growth.  
 
Subsequent Events  
There have been no significant changes or commitments that have impacted the financial posi�on 
of the Modaraba between the end of the financial year and the date of this report. The Modaraba’s 
financial position remains consistent during this period. 
 
Opera�ng data for six years  
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(1geWseZ]IiZzgZkÅZOòšpg/ÃñŽŠ{)DßgŽwÐï%Æa7g~§b6³xìZzgZkÆaZqZ7#-Cë GHEµ/»gHŠìÔ k

TÐwŒÛd~µ4~ÅÂµìX

(Ôb‚ßV»ã~W6|Zzgâ1CeðÔuwƒ®giÆZZŠ»%:ZzgZŸ°¥́â]Ý�X l
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Name of company: FIRST PUNJAB MODARABA  
Year ending:  DECEMBER 31, 2024 
 
The modaraba has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner: -  
 
1. The total number of directors is Seven as per the following:  
a. Male:  Six (06) 
b. Female:  One (01) 
 
2. The composition of the Board is as follows:  
 
Independent directors Mr. Imran Bashir 

Ms. Samina Afsar 
Non-executive directors Mr. Nadeem Amir 

Mr. Ijaz ur Rehman Qureshi 
Mr. Khawar Shahid Ansari 
Mr. Umar Iqbal Sheikh 

Executive director Mr. Mudassar Kaiser Pal 
Female directors Ms. Samina Afsar (also an independent director) 

 
Changes have been made to the Board during the year. Mr. Amir Malik, Chief Executive of First 
Punjab Modaraba, has resigned, and Mr. Mudassar Kaiser Pal has been appointed as Chief 
Executive.  The fraction required for minimum number of independent directors, being 0.33 has not 
been rounded up as one, in view of the experience and skill possessed by existing independent 
directors, which suffice the requirement of independent directors. 
 
3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed 
companies, including this modaraba;  
 
4. The modaraba has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been 
taken to disseminate it throughout the modaraba along with its supporting policies and procedures;  
 
5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant 
policies of the modaraba. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant 
policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the modaraba;  
 
6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been 
taken by the Board as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations;  
 
7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director 
elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the 
Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board;  
 
8. The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in 
accordance with the Act and these Regulations;  
 



 
 
9. Out of seven (07) directors, following Five (05) have obtained certifications under directors training 
program: 
 
 

� Mr. Nadeem Amir 
� Mr. Ijaz ur Rehman Qureshi 
� Mr. Khawar Shahid Ansari 
� Mr. Imran Bashir 
� Ms. Samina Afsar 

 
10. The Board has approved appointment of chief financial officer, company secretary and head of 

internal audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied 

with relevant requirements of the Regulations.  

11. Chief financial officer and Chief executive officer duly endorsed the financial statements before 
approval of the Board;  
 
12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below. -  
 

a) Audit Committee  
 

Chairman Mr. Imran Bashir 

Member Mr. Ijaz ur Rehman Qureshi 

Member Ms. Samina Afsar 

 
b) HR and Remuneration Committee  

 
Chairperson Ms. Samina Afsar 

Member Mr. Ijaz ur Rehman Qureshi 
Member Mr. Umar Iqbal Sheikh 
Member Mr. Imran Bashir 
Member Mr. Mudassar Kaiser Pal 

 
c) Risk Management Committee  

 
Chairman Mr. Ijaz ur Rehman Qureshi 

Member Mr. Umar Iqbal Sheikh 
Member Mr. Mudassar Kaiser Pal 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised 
to the committee for compliance;  
 
14. The frequency of meetings of the committees was as per following, -  
  

Audit Committee Four 
HR and Remuneration Committee One 
Risk Management Committee Nil 
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15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function who is considered suitably qualified and 
experienced for the purpose and is conversant with the policies and procedures of the modaraba;  
 
16. The statutory auditors of the modaraba have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory 
rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan 
and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in 
compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as 
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the 
firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent 
children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary 
or director of the modaraba;  
 
17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide 
other services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory 
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard;  
 
18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations 
have been complied with.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date: June 30, 2025       Ijaz Ur Rehman Qureshi 
                      CHAIRMAN 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REVIEW REPORT  

 

To the members of Punjab Modaraba Services (Pvt) Limited 

 

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 

Governance) Regulations, 2019 

 

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 

Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Punjab Modaraba Services 

(Pvt) Limited (the “Modaraba Company”) for the year ended December 31, 2024 in accordance with the 

requirements of Regulation No. 36 of the Regulations.  

 

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Modaraba Company. 

Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reects the status of the Modaraba Company’s 

compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with 

the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Modaraba Company’s personnel 

and review of various documents prepared by the Modaraba Company to comply with the Regulations.  
 

As a part of our audit of the nancial statements, we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and 

internal control systems sufcient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required 

to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an 

opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Modaraba Company’s corporate governance procedures 

and risks.  
 

The Regulations require the Modaraba Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation 

of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party 

transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval 

of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. 
 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance 

does not appropriately reect the Modaraba Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the Regulations 

as applicable to the Modaraba Company for the year ended December 31, 2024. 

 

 

LAHORE: June 30, 2025 KRESTON HYDER BHIMJI & CO.  

UDIN: CR202410766vmX7OCdAu CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

  

 



26Annual Report 2024

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
NOTICE OF ANNUAL REVIEW MEETING 

 

The Cer�ficate Holders are hereby no�fied that the Cer�ficate Transfer Books shall remain closed 
from 24-07-2025 to 30-07-2025 (both days inclusive), for the purpose of a�ending Annual Review 
Mee�ng. All transfers received in order upto close of business hours on July 23, 2025 with our 
Registrar’s office, M/s. Hameed Majeed Associates (Pvt.) Ltd., H.M House, 7-Bank Square, The 
Mall, Lahore, will be considered in �me. 
 
The Annual Review Mee�ng of the Cer�ficate holders will be held at 10:00 am on Wednesday, 
July 30, 2025 at Registered Office of First Punjab Modaraba, Office No. 100, 3 rd Floor, National 
Towers, 28-Egerton, Road, Lahore to review the performance of the Modaraba for the year 
ended December 31, 2024 in terms of Regulation No.33, Chapter IV of Modaraba Regulations, 
2021. 
 
The Certificate Holders may also join through vide link and are requested to send intima�on 
through valid email ID to the address given below to par�cipate in the mee�ng through video 
link, at least seven (07) days prior to the date of mee�ng: 
 

armdec2024@punjabmodaraba.com.pk 
 
The Modaraba will communicate par�cipation link through return email. Further, the cer�ficate 
holders may send their comments / sugges�ons on the above email address or on Whatsapp / 
Mobile No. 0300 0774434, at least seven (07) days prior to the date of meeting.  
 
The annual audited financial statements of the Modaraba for year ended December 31, 2024 are 
also available on Modaraba’s website: www.punjabmodaraba.com.pk. 
 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                            

By the Order of 
Board of Directors 

 
 
 

(Mahboob Ahmed)  
COMPANY SECRETARY 
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Sr. # Name Shares Held Percentage

1 PUNJAB MODARABA SERVICES (PVT) LTD. 8,088,500 23.7757
2 THE BANK OF PUNJAB 4,788 0.0141
3 PUNJAB MODARABA SERVICES (PVT) LTD. 5,232,194 15.3798
4 TRUSTEE-THE BANK OF PUNJAB EMPLOYEES GRATUITY FUND 5,099,500 14.9897

Running Total: 18,424,982 54.1593

1 INVESTMENT CORP. OF PAKISTAN 400 0.0012

Running Total: 400 0.0012

1 KARACHI INVESTMENT COMPANY (PRIVATE) LIMITED 189 0.0006
2 MUHAMMAD AMER RIAZ SECURITIES (PVT.) LIMITED 20 0.0001
3 N.B.P. TRUSTEE DEPARTMENT H.O. 260 0.0008
4 ATLAS BOT INVESTMENT BANK LTD. 429 0.0013
5 SAUDI-PAK INDUSTRIAL & AGRI- CULTURAL INV. CO. (PVT) LTD 24,535 0.0721
6 AL-FAISAL INVESTMENT BANK LTD. 100 0.0003
7 NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT LEASING- CORPORATION 5,200 0.0153
8 NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT FINANCE- CORPORATION (INVESTER) 3,300 0.0097
9 NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN TRUSTEE WING HEAD OFFICE 965 0.0028
10 IDBL (ICP UNIT) 2,408 0.0071
11 Diamond Industries Ltd 151,000 0.4439
12 FRANKLIN INVESTMENT BANK LTD 1,100 0.0032
13 ESCORTS INVESTMENT BANK LIMITED 19,760 0.0581
14 NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN 656 0.0019

Running Total: 209,922       0.6171

1 STATE LIFE INSURANCE CORP. OF PAKISTAN 1,265,777 3.7207

Running Total: 1,265,777 3.7207

1 SECURITY STOCK FUND LTD. 3,100 0.0091
2 GENERAL LEASING MODARABA 56 0.0002
3 PRUDENTIAL STOCKS FUND LIMITED 100 0.0003
4 FIRST FIDELITY LEASING MODARBA 300 0.0009
5 FIRST IBL MODARABA 100,000 0.2939
6 TRUST MODARABA 1,752 0.0051

Running Total: 105,308       0.3095

Running Total: 13,629,078 40.0620

1 MSMANIAR FINANCIALS (PVT) LTD. 132 0.0004
2 DR. ARSLAN RAZAQUE SECURITIES (PVT.) LIMITED 200 0.0006
3 ALI USMAN STOCK BROKERAGE (PVT) LIMITED 275 0.0008
4 MUHAMMAD AHMED NADEEM SECURITIES (SMC-PVT) LIMITED 240 0.0007
5 NCC - PRE SETTLEMENT DELIVERY ACCOUNT 4,927 0.0145
6 S.H. BUKHARI SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED 382 0.0011
7 SARFRAZ MAHMOOD (PRIVATE) LTD 570 0.0017
8 MAPLE LEAF CAPITAL LIMITED 1 0.0000
9 CAPITAL VISION SECURITIES (PVT) LTD. 3,310 0.0097
10 MILLENNIUM SECURITIES & INVEST.(PVT) LTD 20 0.0001
11 PRUDENTIAL SECURITIES LIMITED 2,000 0.0059
12 PRUDENTIAL SECURITIES LIMITED 260 0.0008
13 DOSSLANIS SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 350 0.0010
14 SHAFFI SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED 20,000 0.0588
15 EJAZ SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 178,500 0.5247

Running Total: 211,167 0.6207

Public Sector Companies and Corporations

Banks, Development Financial Instituations, Non Banking Financial Instituations

Insurance Companies

Modarabas and Mutual Funds

General Public (Local)

Joint Stock Companies

FIRST PUNJAB MODARABA
DETAILED CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS 

AS ON DECEMBER 31, 2024

Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties



5 ALLY BROTHERS & COMPANY M/S. (PAKISTAN) LTD. 17,500 0.0514
6 SAPPHIRE FIBRES LTD 500 0.0015
7 DADABHOY LEASING COMPANY LTD. 6,804 0.0200
8 BILAL ASSOCIATES 19 0.0001
9 MORGAN STANLEY INTERNATIONAL 1,200 0.0035
10 MORGAN STANLEY TRUST 19,335 0.0568
11 B.R.R INVESTMENTS (PVT.) LTD 8,750 0.0257
12 TRUSTEE NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN EMP BENEVOLENT FUND 3,747 0.0110
13 TRUSTEE NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN EMPLOYEES PENSION FUND 106,786 0.3139

Running Total: 173,366 0.5096

Grand Total: 34,020,000 100.0000

1 PUNJAB MODARABA SERVICES (PVT) LTD. 5,232,194 15.3798
2 PUNJAB MODARABA SERVICES (PVT) LTD. 8,088,500 23.7757
3 TRUSTEE-THE BANK OF PUNJAB EMPLOYEES GRATUITY FUND 5,099,500 14.9897

18,420,194 54.1452

SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 5% OR MORE HOLDING

1 TRUST LEASING CORPORATION LTD. 1,775 0.0052
2 IMPEX CORPORATION (PVT.) LTD. 3,248 0.0095
3 JAHANGIR SIDDIQUI & CO. LTD. 3,202 0.0094
4 HAJVERI HOLDINGS (PVT) LTD 500 0.0015

Others
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From To
956 1  - 100 41,326 0.12
1367 101  - 500 377,025 1.11
1029 501  - 1000 842,335 2.48
616 1001  - 5000 1,397,800 4.11
127 5001  - 10000 969,119 2.85
35 10001  - 15000 444,354 1.31
29 15001  - 20000 526,892 1.55
20 20001  - 25000 446,666 1.31
12 25001  - 30000 331,279 0.97
8 30001  - 35000 261,487 0.77
8 35001  - 40000 296,994 0.87
4 40001  - 45000 175,440 0.52
9 45001  - 50000 446,207 1.31
6 50001  - 55000 314,960 0.93
1 55001  - 60000 59,000 0.17
1 60001  - 65000 64,450 0.19
4 65001  - 70000 272,219 0.80
3 70001  - 75000 221,104 0.65
2 80001  - 85000 168,000 0.49
8 95001  - 100000 796,500 2.34
1 105001  - 110000 106,786 0.31
1 115001  - 120000 117,923 0.35
1 120001  - 125000 122,220 0.36
2 130001  - 135000 267,000 0.78
1 135001  - 140000 140,000 0.41
1 150001  - 155000 151,000 0.44
1 160001  - 165000 161,016 0.47
1 175001  - 180000 178,500 0.52
1 185001  - 190000 190,000 0.56
1 190001  - 195000 193,500 0.57
3 195001  - 200000 597,644 1.76
1 205001  - 210000 210,000 0.62
1 240001  - 245000 243,280 0.72
1 260001  - 265000 265,000 0.78
1 275001  - 280000 275,230 0.81
1 300001  - 305000 300,050 0.88
1 350001  - 355000 352,000 1.03
1 365001  - 370000 367,500 1.08
2 495001  - 500000 1,000,000 2.94
1 640001  - 645000 642,223 1.89
1 1265001  - 1270000 1,265,777 3.72
1 5095001  - 5100000 5,099,500 14.99
1 5230001  - 5235000 5,232,194 15.38
1 8085001  - 8090000 8,088,500 23.78

4,273 34,020,000 100.00

FIRST PUNJAB MODARABA
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDINGS

AS ON DECEMBER 31, 2024

Number of 

ShareHolders

Shareholdings Total Number of Shares 

Held

Percentage of 

Total Capital
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 A. 

 

Opinion 

 
 We have audited the annexed nancial statements of First Punjab Modaraba

 
(the 

“Modaraba”),
 

which comprise the
 
statement of nancial position as at December 31, 

2024, and the statement of prot and loss and other comprehensive income, the statement 
of changes in equity, the statement of cash ows for the year then ended, and notes to the 
nancial statements, including a summary of signicant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and 
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the 
purposes of the audit.

 
 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us, the statement of nancial position, statement of prot and loss and other 
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash ows 
together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Modaraba 
Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 (XXXI of 1980), in 
the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the 
Modaraba’s affairs as at December 31, 2024 and of the loss and other comprehensive 
income, the changes in equity and its cash ows for the year then ended. 

 

B.  Basis for Opinion   
 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as 
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in 
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. 
We are independent of the Modaraba and Modaraba Company

 
(Punjab Modaraba 

Services (Private) Limited)
 
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for 

Accountants ‘Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants’ as adopted by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fullled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

 
 

C. 

 

Key audit matters

 
 

1.

 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
signicance in our audit of the nancial statements of the current period. These matters 
were addressed in the context of our audit of the nancial statements as a whole, and 
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these 
matters. 

 
 

 
 



2.

 

Following are the Key audit matters, namely:

 
 

Sr. 
No.

 

Key Audit Matters

 

How the matter was addressed 
in our audit

 

1.

 

Revenue recognition:

 
 
 

As per ISA 240, there is a presumed 
risk of material misstatement due to 
inappropriate revenue recognition. This 
may either result from an overstatement 
of revenues through premature revenue 
recognition or recording

 

ctitious 
revenues or an understatement of 
revenues through improperly shifting 
revenues to a later period. 

 
 These revenues

 
may also be 

manipulated through the use of 
inappropriate prot rates for the 
overstatement / understatement of 
revenue to achieve desired nancial 
results.  

 
In view of signicant value of 
transactions and presumed risk of 
material misstatement involved, we 
have considered this as a key audit 
matter.  

 

The disclosures related to recognition of 
revenue by the Modaraba

 
are 

provided in note 4.21
 
to the annexed 

nancial statements.
 

In this regard, our audit 
procedures included:

 
 
�

 

Understanding the policies 
and procedures applied to 
revenue recognition, as well as 
compliance therewith, 
including an analysis of the 
effectiveness of controls 
related to revenue recognition 
processes employed by the 
Modaraba.

 
 

�
 

Performing cut-off procedures 
for a sample of revenue 
transactions at year end in 
order to conclude on whether 
they were recognized in the 
relevant accounting period. 

 

� Performing analytical 
procedures on entries in the 
daily ledger related to 
revenue made by the 
Modaraba. These procedures 
were carried out paying 
special attention to accounting 
entries recorded close to the 
yearend or subsequently, as 
well as those deemed unusual 
due, among other reasons, to 
their nature, amount, date of 
occurrence.

 
 

�

 

Reviewing disclosures included 
in the notes to the annexed 
nancial statements.

 

2.

 

Income Tax and Levies:

 
 

As described in Material

 

Accounting 
Policies

 

Information

 

in note –

 

4.11, 
signicant judgment is required in 
determining the provision for income 
tax, both current and deferred, as well 

We evaluated the design and 
implementation of controls in 
respect of provisions for levy and 
current income tax and the 
recognition of deferred income 
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assessment of provision for uncertain 
tax positions including estimates of 
penalties / default surcharge, where 
appropriate.

 
 

The statement of nancial position 
includes advance income tax net of 
provision of Rs. 32.041 million together 
with deferred tax asset of Rs.94.239

 
million

 

as of reporting date. Detail of 
income tax and levies

 

is disclosed in 
notes-10, 36

 

and 37

 

to the annexed 
nancial statements

 

respectively.

 
 Due to their signicance to the nancial 

statements as a whole, together with the 
judgment and estimation required to 
determine their values, the evaluation of 
levy, current and deferred

 
income

 
tax 

balances is considered to be a key 
audit matter.  

tax.

 

We discussed with management 
the adequate implementation of 
Modaraba’s

 

policies and controls 
regarding current and deferred 
tax as well as the reporting of 
uncertain tax positions.

 
 
We examined the procedures in 
place for the levies and income 
tax

 

calculations for completeness 
and valuation and audited the 
related computations and 
estimates in the light of our 
knowledge of the circumstances. 
Our verication of taxation was 
also made with the assistance of 
our rm’s tax department.

 
 We considered management 
assessment of the validity and 
adequacy of provision for 
uncertain tax provisions, 
evaluating the basis of assessment 
and reviewing relevant 
correspondence and legal advice 
where available including any 
information regarding similar 
cases with the relevant tax 
authorities.

 
 

In respect of deferred tax assets 
and liabilities, we assessed the 
appropriateness of management 
assumptions and estimates.

 
 
 

We reviewed disclosures included 
in the notes-10, 36

 

and 37

 

to the 
annexed nancial statements.

 
 

3.

 

Provision against nancing

 

/ advances

 

and other receivables

 
 

The Modaraba makes specic 
provisions against nancing / advances 
as disclosed in notes-7, 8, 11, 12

 

and 
13

 

to the nancial statements in 
accordance with the requirements of the 
Modaraba Regulations, 2021 issued by 

Our audit procedures to verify 
provision against advances and 
other receivables included, 
amongst others, the following:

 
 

We obtained an understanding of 
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the SECP from time to time

 

and under 
IFRS

 

9 using ECL model whichever is

 

higher. The Modaraba has also made 
provision against advances and other 
receivables as disclosed in note 16

 

to 
the nancial statements as per 
accounting standards.

 
 

The net provision made or reversed 
during the year against advances is 
charged or credited to the statement of 
prot and loss and other comprehensive 
income and accumulated provision is 
netted-off against advances and other 
receivables. 

 
 The Modaraba has made

 
a

 
reversal of

 provision against nancing / advances 
amounting to Rs. 16.876

 
million and 

recognized
 

a provision against other 
receivables amounting to Rs. 26.112 
million in the statement of prot and 
loss and other comprehensive income in 
the current year. As at December 31, 
2024, the Modaraba holds a provision 
of Rs.  379.140  million and Rs. 89.503 

million against nancing / advances 
and other receivables respectively. 

 

The determination of provision against 
advances and receivables based on the 
above criteria remains a signicant 
area of judgment and estimation. 
Because of the signicance of the 
impact of these judgments / estimations 
and the materiality of advances and 
other receivables relative to the overall 
nancial statements of the Modaraba, 
we considered provision against 
advances and other receivables as a 
key audit matter.

 

the design and tested the 
operating effectiveness of the 
relevant controls established by 
the Modaraba to identify loss 
events and for determining the 
extent of provisioning required 
against non-performing advances 
and other receivables. 

 
 
The testing of controls included 
testing of: 

 
 �

 

controls over correct 
classification of non-
performing advances on time-
based criteria; 

 
 �

 
controls over monitoring of 
advances / receivables with 
higher risk of default and 
correct classication of non-
performing advances / 
receivables on subjective 
criteria;  

 

� controls over accurate 
computation and recording of 
provision; and  

 

�
 

controls over the governance 
and approval process related 
to provision, including 
continuous reassessment by the 
management. 

 
 

We selected a sample of 
advances and receivables 
accounts and performed the 
following substantive procedures:

 
 

�

 

checked repayments of 
advances / mark-up 
installments and tested 
classification of non-
performing advances based 
on the number of days 
overdue; 
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�

 

evaluated the management’s 
assessment for classication of 
borrower’s advances facilities 
as performing or 
nonperforming based on a 
review of repayment pattern, 
inspection of credit 
documentation and discussions 
with the management; 

 
 �

 

examined supporting 
documentation such as 
agreements, repayment 
schedules, repayment history, 
collateral details, etc;

 
 �

 
We assessed the 
reasonableness of provision 
made by the management in 
accordance with IFRS -09;

 
 

� We obtained an 
understanding of the 
requirements of IFRS -09 
included, amongst others, 
review of the methodology 
developed and applied by 
Modaraba to estimate ECL in 
relation to these

 
receivables; 

and
 
 

�
 

We also considered and 
evaluated the assumptions 
used in applying the ECL 
methodology based on 
historical information and 
qualitative factors as relevant 
for such estimates.

 
 

�

 

We evaluated the relevance, 
completeness and accuracy of 
the source data used for ECL 
computation. We also checked 
the mathematical accuracy of 
ECL model by performing 
recalculation on test basis.
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D.  Information other than the nancial statements and Auditor’s Report thereon 
 

Management of the Modaraba Company is responsible for the other information. The 
other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not 
include the nancial statements and auditor’s report thereon. 

 

Our opinion on the nancial statements does not cover the other information and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

 
 

In connection with our audit of the nancial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the nancial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, 
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

 
 

 

E. 
 

Responsibilities of management and Board of Directors of the Modaraba Company for 
the nancial statements

  
 

1.

 

Management of the Modaraba Company is responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of the nancial statements in accordance with the accounting and 
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Modaraba 
Companies and

 

Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 (XXXI of 1980) 
and for such internal control as management of the Modaraba Company determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of nancial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

 
 

2.

 

In preparing the nancial statements, management of the Modaraba Company is 
responsible for assessing the Modaraba’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management of the Modaraba Company either 
intends to liquidate the Modaraba or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

 
 

3.

 

Board of directors of the Modaraba Company are responsible for overseeing the 
Modaraba’s nancial reporting process. 

 
 

F. 

 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the nancial statements

 
 

1.

 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurances about whether the nancial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s

 

report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in 
Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to inuence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis 
of these nancial statements. 
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2.

 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We 
also:

 
 

a)

 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the nancial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufcient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

 
 b)

 
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are

 
appropriate

 
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Modaraba’s internal control;
 

 c)
 
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
management of the Modaraba Company; 

 
 

d)  Conclude on the appropriateness of the management of the Modaraba 
Company’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast signicant doubt on the Modaraba’s ability 
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the nancial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Modaraba to cease to continue as a going concern; and 

 

e)
 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the nancial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the nancial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner

 
that achieves fair 

presentation. 
 

 

3.
 

We communicate with the board of directors of the Modaraba Company regarding, 
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and signicant audit 
ndings, including any signicant deficiencies in inter nal control that we identify during 
our audit. 

 
 

4.

 

We also provide the board of directors of the Modaraba Company with a statement 
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, 
and to communicate with them all relationships

 

and other matters that may reasonably 
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

 
 

5.

 

From the matters communicated with the board of directors of the Modaraba 
Company, we determine those matters that were of most signicance in the audit of 
the nancial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. 
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We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the 
public interest benefits of such communication. 

 
G   Report on other legal and regulatory requirements  

 
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion: 
 

a)  Proper books of account have been kept by the Modaraba Company in respect of 
the Modaraba as required by the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba 
(Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 (XXXI of 1980);  

 
b)  the statement of nancial position, the statement of prot and loss and other 

comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of 
cash ows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in confo rmity with 
the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 
1980 (XXXI of 1980) and are in agreement with the books of account;  

 
c)  business conducted, investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees 

extended during the year by the Modaraba were in accordance with the objects, 
terms and conditions of the Modaraba; and 

 

d)  no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 
(XVIII of 1980).  

 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Mr. Shabir 
Ahmad, FCA.  

 
 
 
 

  
KRESTON HYDER BHIMJI& CO.

 

UDIN# AR202410766eDZERtYgm   
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

 
 

LAHORE: June 30, 2025 



 
Shari’ah Advisor’s Report  

First Punjab Modaraba (December 31, 2024) 
 

I have conducted the Shari’ah review of First Punjab Modaraba (FPM) managed by Punjab Modaraba 

Services (PVT) Limited for the Year ended December 31, 2024, in accordance with the requirements of the 

Shari’ah Compliance and Shari’ah Audit Mechanism for Modarabas and report that:  

i. The Modaraba has introduced a mechanism which has strengthened the Shari’ah compliance, in 

le�er and spirit and the systems, procedures and policies adopted by the Modaraba are in line 

with the Shari’ah principles. 

ii. The agreement(s) entered by the Modaraba are Shari’ah compliant and the financing 

agreement(s) have been executed on the formats as approved by the Religious Board of SECP and 

all the related condi�ons have been met. 

iii. During the year, the Shari’ah Advisor visited the premises regularly to provide Shari’ah assistance 

in day-to-day opera�ons. 

iv. Internal Shariah training for HOD’s has been conducted by Shariah Advisor during the year. 

v. The amount realized against late payments have been credited to charity account and disbursed. 

It is advised to FPM to disburse remaining charity ASAP. 
 

Observation(s) 
 

1) Staff frequent turnover disturbs the Internal Shari’ah Audit func�on resultantly facing problems in 

checking and verifica�on of rou�ne opera�ons in accordance with Shari’ah principles. It has been 

observed that internal Shariah audit of FPM needs trained & skilled resource having proper 

cer�fica�on of Shariah audit mechanism. 

 

2) Certain policies and SOP’s need periodic review with regards to Shari’ah principles . 

 

3) Prior wri�en approval required to be obtained from Shari’ah Advisor on one -�me basis for debut 

natured transac�ons, including all kind of Modaraba’s inflows, ou�lows, or investments, to meet the 

Shariah compliance requirements. 

 

Recommenda�on(s): 
 

1) According to the Annual Shariah Advisor Reports of last two years, FPM should appoint a well-trained 
internal Shariah auditor on a permanent basis. Shariah Compliance and Internal Shariah Audit are 
two dis�nct yet interconnected disciplines. The efficacy of the Shariah Advisor's role is dependent on 
this coordina�on. FPM must address the issue before the next Annual Shariah Advisor Report.  

 
2) It is essen�al for FPM to take prior approvals by providing relevant informa�on to Shari’ah Advisor 

to analyze and confirm the Shari’ah Compliance status of transac�ons.  

 

3) FPM management should ensure that all relevant staff adhere  properly and comply all product-

related documents while maintaining the prescribed transac�on sequence to ensure Shariah 

compliance. 

 

4) The commendable efforts made by FPM resul�ng in a remarkable conversion rate of 98.50% of the 

por�olio into Takaful are highly appreciated. The remaining small por�on consists of corporate 

clients with their own arrangements. FPM should also encourage them to transit their por�olios into 

Takaful policies as well.  
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5) Investment of staff provident fund is explicitly recommended in Shari’ah Compliant mode . 

 

Conclusion: 

 

                In my opinion and to the best of my knowledge and informa�on provided by FPM with relevant 

explana�ons, The Modaraba's overall business ac�vi�es comply with the Shariah Compliance Mechanism. 

Nevertheless, FPM management needs to put more efforts and take the necessary ac�ons for �mely 

execu�on of above recommenda�ons which is essen�al for maintaining FPM’s credibility as a genuine 

Islamic financial ins�tu�on. 

 
 

May Allah make us successful in this world and hereafter and forgive our mistakes. 

 

 

MUFTI MUHAMMAD UMAR  
SHARI’AH ADVISOR , FPM 
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December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

ASSETS  

Non current assets
Tangible fixed assets

- Ijarah assets 5.1 185,227,848             148,068,219             
- Assets in own use 5.2 3,571,658                 4,066,485                 

Intangible assets 6 388,332                    1,055,607                 
Long term musharikah investment - secured 7 690,449,778             458,544,566             
Long term morabaha investment - secured 8 6,927,036                 13,502,006               

Long term deposits  9 1,422,494                 203,444                    
Deferred tax asset 10 94,239,022               109,657,977             

982,226,168             735,098,304             
Current assets
Short term morabaha investment - secured 11 136,052,103             173,447,518             
Current maturity of long term investment 12 430,279,088             369,755,675             
Ijarah rental receivable 13 76,994,055               111,362,665             
Short term investment 14 109,816,508             350,000,000             
Development properties 15 25,290,372               49,696,584               
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 16 159,798,809             156,788,162             
Income tax refund due from government - net 32,040,853               10,053,694               
Cash and bank balances 17 23,080,100               233,544,957             

993,351,888             1,454,649,255          
TOTAL ASSETS  1,975,578,056          2,189,747,559          

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Authorized certificate capital
50,000,000 (2023: 50,000,000) modaraba
certificates of Rs. 10 each 18 500,000,000             500,000,000             

340,200,000             340,200,000             

Capital reserves 19 218,176,678             218,176,678             
Revenue reserves - accumulated losses 19 (850,373,686)            (680,257,523)            
Subordinated funds 20 500,000,000             500,000,000             
Total equity 208,002,992             378,119,155             

Non current liabilities
Redeemable capital - participatory and unsecured 21 1,485,000,000          1,485,000,000          
Long term security deposits  22 8,547,016                 2,140,000                 
Deferred morabaha income 23 1,617,760                 5,881,661                 
Staff retirement benefits - gratuity 24 7,593,368                 9,271,499                 

1,502,758,144          1,502,293,160          
Current liabilities
Current maturity of non current liabilities 25 45,210,018               98,326,302               
Profit payable 26 103,723,983             103,300,796             
Trade and other payables 27 89,030,847               86,151,716               
Provision for levies 9,738,032                 4,365,946                 
Unclaimed dividend 17,114,040               17,190,484               

264,816,920             309,335,244             
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS  28

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,975,578,056          2,189,747,559          

The annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements.

FIRST PUNJAB MODARABA
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024

Issued, subscribed and paid-up certificate capital
34,020,000 (2023: 34,020,000) modaraba certificates of Rs. 

10 each

For Punjab Modaraba Services (Private) Limited
(Modaraba Company)
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Chief Executive Officer Director Director



2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

INCOME
Income from ijarah rentals 29 54,844,805           40,518,318           
Income from morabaha financing 17,941,705           8,008,867             
Income from diminishing musharikah financing 203,502,965         195,830,229         
Gain from sale of development properties 30 2,664,589             2,587,377             
Gain on disposal of assets 31 14,525,417           5,224,014             
Other income 32 111,173,438         79,150,545           

404,652,919         331,319,350         
EXPENSES
Administrative and general expenses 33 98,462,810           79,992,200           

Finance cost 34 370,612,005         358,390,896         
469,074,815         438,383,096         

(64,421,896)         (107,063,746)        

(Provision) / Reversal of provision against ijarah rentals - net (1,723,382)           408,563                

Reversal of provision against morabaha investments - net 35 4,430,833             9,044,500             

Reversal of provision against musharikah investments - net 35 14,168,710           1,666,373             

(Provision) against advances and other receivables 16.7 (26,112,216)         (57,360,693)          

(9,236,055)           (46,241,257)          

(73,657,951)         (153,305,003)        

MODARABA MANAGEMENT COMPANY'S MANAGEMENT FEE -                       -                            

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX AND LEVIES (73,657,951)         (153,305,003)        

LEVIES 36 (5,372,086)           (7,769,876)            

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX (79,030,037)         (161,074,879)        

INCOME TAX 37 (15,336,569)         49,513,360           

LOSS AFTER INCOME TAX FOR THE YEAR (94,366,606)         (111,561,519)        

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently t o profit or loss
Actuarial gain on remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 24.4 284,089                3,108,447             
Related income tax (82,386)                (901,450)               

201,703                2,206,997             

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR (94,164,903)         (109,354,522)        

LOSS PER CERTIFICATE - BASIC AND DILUTED 38 (2.77)                    (3.21)                     

The annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements.

OPERATING LOSS BEFORE PROVISIONS

FIRST PUNJAB MODARABA
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

OPERATING LOSS AFTER REVERSAL OF PROVISION / (PROVISION)

For Punjab Modaraba Services (Private) Limited
(Modaraba Company)
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2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Cash generated from operations 47 255,415,810            268,473,192              

Disbursements under Ijarah arrangements 5.1 (189,275,421)           (28,003,913)               
Proceeds from transfer of ijarah assets 114,226,993            35,111,408                
Morabaha financing - net 8 41,882,528              20,310,770                
Musharikah financing - net 7 (341,040,039)           66,983,392                
Long term deposits (1,219,050)               -                             
Development properties 27,070,801              3,673,114                  
Security deposits against ijarah assets - net 22 (50,973,169)             (17,737,892)               
Profit paid on redeemable capital - participatory and unsecured (369,997,392)           (282,873,910)             
Bank charges paid (191,426)                  (312,935)                    
Gratuity paid 24.2 (3,843,429)               (68,608)                      
Income tax paid (21,987,159)             (8,816,218)                 

(795,346,763)           (211,734,792)             

Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities (539,930,953)           56,738,400                

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of assets in own use 5.2 (854,556)                  (2,632,500)                 
Proceeds from disposal of assets in own use 5.2.3 2,650,829                1,000,000                  
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiary company -                               85,487,000                
Profit received on bank deposits 87,562,775              56,277,061                
Changes in short term investments made during the year - net 240,183,492            (150,000,000)             

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities 329,542,540            (9,868,439)                 

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Subordinated funds received from parent company 20 -                               500,000,000              
Changes in redeemable capital - participatory and unsecured (net) 21 -                               (340,000,000)             
Profit distributed among the certificate holders (76,444)                    (791)                           
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (76,444)                    159,999,209              

NET (DECREASE) / INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (210,464,857)           206,869,170              
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 233,544,957            26,675,787                

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 17 23,080,100              233,544,957              

The annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements.

FIRST PUNJAB MODARABA
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

For Punjab Modaraba Services (Private) Limited
(Modaraba Company)
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1 STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance 

o

o

o

o

2.2 Basis of measurement

The Modaraba is a perpetual and multi-dimensional Modaraba and is primarily engaged in the business of Ijarah, Musharikah and

Murabaha financing, equity investment and other related businesses in accordance with the injunctions of Islam. Modaraba has obtained

approval of the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan to undertake Building, Construction and Real Estate activity by insertion

of a new clause for this purpose in prospectus of the Modaraba on January 13, 2021.

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency (PACRA) has assigned long term rating of A- (December 31, 2023: A-) and short term rating of A-2

(December 31, 2023: A-2) to the Modaraba on September 20, 2024 (December 31, 2023: September 20, 2023).

FIRST PUNJAB MODARABA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

First Punjab Modaraba (the Modaraba) was formed under the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Flotation and Control) Ordinance,

1980 and rules framed there under and is managed by Punjab Modaraba Services (Private) Limited (the "Modaraba Company") which is

a wholly owned subsidiary of The Bank of Punjab. The registered office of the Modaraba is situated at Office No. 100, 3rd floor, National

Tower, 28-Egerton Road, Lahore. The Modaraba commenced its operations on December 23, 1992. The Modaraba is listed on Pakistan

Stock Exchange.

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) 

as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan;

Requirements of the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and & Control) Ordinance, 1980, the Modaraba

Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981 and the Modaraba Regulations, 2021; and

Provisions of and directives issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) under the Modaraba

Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 and the Companies Act, 2017.

Wherever the requirements of the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and & Control) Ordinance, 1980, the Modaraba

Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981, Modaraba Regulations, 2021 and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) and provisions

of and directives issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) under the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba

(Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 and the Companies Act, 2017 differ from IFRS Standards, the requirements of the Modaraba

Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980, Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981, Modaraba

Regulations, 2021, IFAS and provisions of and directives issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) under

the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 and the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved accounting and reporting standards as applicable in

Pakistan. The approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprises of:

The SECP has issued directive (vide SRO 431 (I) / 2007 dated May 22, 2007) that Islamic Financial Accounting Standard 2 (IFAS 2) shall

be followed in preparation of the financial statements by Companies and Modarabas while accounting for Lease Financing transactions

as defined by the said standard. The Modaraba has adopted the said standard.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for defined benefit obligation i.e. gratuity at

the present value of the obligation determined through actuarial valuation and discussed further in the respective policy note.

Permissible Islamic financial products including Murabaha (as a liability) and Musharikah have been used by the Modaraba, in line with

similar industry practices. The accounting and presentation of the same are in line with the substance of the transaction and are limited to

the extent of actual amount of facility utilized and mutually agreed mark-up / profit thereon. Accordingly, purchases, sales and Musharikah

profits / reserves are not reflected in these financial statements except for Murabaha facility (as an asset) which has been accounted for

in line with Islamic Financial Accounting Standard - 1.
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2.3 Functional and presentation currency

2.4 Critical accounting estimates, judgments and assumptions

o Estimates of residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods of ijarah assets (note 4.3)
o Estimates of residual values, useful lives and depreciation method of assets in own use (note 4.1)
o Intangible assets (note 4.2)
o Employees' benefits - gratuity (note 4.10)
o Development properties - NRV (note 4.6)
o Contingencies (note 4.18)
o Provisions (note 4.15).
o Impairment of financial assets (note 4.14)
o Impairment of non-financial assets (note 4.14)
o

o Provision for taxation (note 4.11).
o Classification

3

3.1

Effective date
(annual periods

beginning or after)

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2024

Provision against non-performing Ijarah rentals receivables, Morabaha financing and Musharikah financing and FSVs of 

collaterals (note 4.4)

The revisions to accounting estimates (if any) are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that

period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

NEW STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS OF AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Standards, interpretations of and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in the current
year:

These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee (Rs.) which is the Modaraba’s functional and presentation currency. All

financial information presented in Pakistan Rupees has been rounded to the nearest rupee unless otherwise indicated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan requires the

use of certain critical accounting estimates. In addition, it requires management to exercise judgment in the process of applying the

Modaraba’s accounting policies. The areas involving a high degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates

are significant to the financial statements, are documented in the following accounting policies and notes, and relate primarily to:

There are certain amendments to the published approved accounting standards that are effective in the current year. However, these do

not have any significant impact on the Modaraba’s operations and, therefore, have not been detailed in these financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Amendments to clarify how a seller-lessee subsequently

measures sale and leaseback transactions

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Classification of liabilities as

current or non-current

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Non-current liabilities with

covenants

Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' - Supplier finance arrangements

Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' - Supplier finance arrangements
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3.2

Effective date
(annual periods

beginning or after)

4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

4.1 Assets in own use

Measurement

New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective

There are certain other new and amended standards, interpretations and amendments that are mandatory for the Modaraba’s accounting 

periods beginning on or after January 01, 2025 but are considered not to be relevant or will not have any significant effect on the 

Modaraba’s operations and are, therefore, not detailed in these financial statements.

January 01, 2026
Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' - Amendments regarding the

classification and measurement of financial instruments

Amendments to IFRS 9 Instruments' - Amendments regarding the classification and
January 01, 2026

'Financial

measurement of financial instruments

January 01, 2025
Amendments to IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates' - Lack of

Exchangeability

January 01, 2026IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

July 01, 2009IFRS 1 'First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards'.

January 01, 2027IFRS 18 'Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements'.

January 01, 2027IFRS 19 'Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures'.

July 01, 2025IFRS S1 'General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability-related Financial Information'.

July 01, 2025IFRS S2 'Climate-related Disclosures'.

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes all expenditures that

are directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included in the assets' carrying amounts or recognized as

separate assets, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the items will flow to the Modaraba

and the cost of the items can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance expenses are charged to the statement of profit

and loss and other comprehensive income as and when incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation on all operating fixed assets is charged to statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income by applying the

straight line method so as to write off the depreciable amount of the assets over their estimated useful lives at the rates given in Note 5.2.

The residual values and useful lives are reviewed by the management at each financial year end and adjusted if impact on depreciation is

significant. Depreciation on additions is charged from the date on which the assets are available for use and on disposals up to the date

on which the assets are disposed off.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent with those of the previous year except for

the changes, if any, explained below:
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4.2 Intangible assets
Measurement

4.3 Ijarah assets

Derecognition

An item of assets in use is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss

arising on derecognition of the asset is included in the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income in the year the asset

is de-recognized.

Judgment and estimates

The Modaraba assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that intangible assets may be impaired. If such indication

exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amounts.

Where the carrying value exceeds the recoverable amount, intangible assets are written down to the recoverable amount and the

difference is recognized in the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income.

Assets leased out under Ijarah arrangements are recorded as Ijarah assets and are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes all expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets. Subsequent

costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future

economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Modaraba and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs

and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income as and when incurred. The residual

values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Depreciation is charged to the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income applying the straight line method whereby

the cost of an asset less residual value is depreciated over the estimated useful life of the asset. Depreciation is charged on additions

from the date, the asset is available for use and on disposals up to the date, the asset is disposed off. 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These are recognized in the statement

of profit and loss and other comprehensive income, in the year in which these arise.

The Modaraba assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that assets in own use may be impaired. If such indication

exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount.

Where carrying values exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting

impairment loss is recognized in statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income. The recoverable amount is the higher of

an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the depreciation charge is adjusted in

the future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount over its estimated useful life.

Intangible assets having a finite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets' carrying amounts or recognized as separate assets, as appropriate, only where it is

probable that the future economic benefits associated with the assets will flow to the Modaraba and the cost of the items can be

measured reliably. The useful lives and amortization method are reviewed and adjusted, as appropriate, at each reporting date.

Amortization  is charged when the asset is available for use as intended by management.

Research and development expenditure, if any, is charged to 'administrative and general expenses' in the statement of profit and loss and

other comprehensive income, as and when incurred.

Intangible assets having an indefinite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Gain or loss on disposal

of intangible assets, if any, is recognized in the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income.

Judgment and estimates

The carrying amount of the Modaraba's Ijarah assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of

impairment in any asset or group of assets. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the Ijarah assets is estimated and

impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income.

Mustajir (lessors) presents the assets subject to Ijarah in their statement of financial position according to the nature of the asset. the

Mustajir is required to distinguish these Ijarah assets from the assets in own use.

Costs, including depreciation on the assets given on Ijarah, incurred in earning the Ijarah income are recognized as expenses.
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4.4 Morabaha and Musharikah investment / financing
Morabaha investment

Musharikah investment

4.5 Other investments

Investment in subsidiary

Held-to-maturity investments

Judgments and estimates

4.6 Development properties
Measurement

Diminishing musharikah financing is recognized initially at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, this is stated at original cost less

principal repayments.

Lease financing installments and diminishing musharikah financing are stated net of provision and suspense income. Provision is

recognized for lease financing installments and diminishing musharikah financing, in accordance with the Modaraba Regulations, 2021 for

Modarabas. Bad debts are written-off when identified.

Investments intended to be held for less than twelve months from the reporting date or to be sold to raise operating capital are included in

current assets, all other investments are classified as non-current. Management determines the classification of its investments at the

time of purchase depending on the purpose for which the investments are required and re-evaluates this classification on regular basis.

Investment in subsidiary is initially recognized at cost. At subsequent reporting dates, the recoverable amounts are estimated to

determine the extent of impairment losses, if any, and carrying amounts of investments are adjusted accordingly. Impairment losses are

recognized in the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income. Where impairment losses subsequently reverse, the

carrying amounts of the investments are increased to the revised recoverable amounts but limited to the extent of initial cost of

investments. A reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income.

Investments with a fixed maturity that the Modaraba has the intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held to maturity

investments. These are initially recognized on trade date at cost and derecognized by the Modaraba on the date it commits to sell them

off. At subsequent reporting date they are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

All purchases and sales of investments are recognized on the trade date which is the date that the Modaraba commits to purchase or sell

the investment. Cost of purchase includes transaction cost.

Modaraba obtains an undertaking (promise to purchase) from the client and purchases the requested assets / goods from third parties

and takes possession of such goods / assets that are the subject matter of morabaha arrangements. However, the Modaraba can appoint

the client as its agent to purchase the assets/goods on its behalf. Thereafter, its sells these goods / assets to the client at cost plus the

profit agreed upon in the promise. Murabaha sale is recorded at the invoiced amount and profit is recognized in accordance with IFAS-1

(Murabaha) to the extent of pro-rata portion of sale price received as compared to total agreed price. Profit on the portion of sale revenue

not due for payment is deferred and recognized as liability.

At each reporting date, the Modaraba reviews the carrying amounts of the investment to assess whether there is any indication that any

investment has suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the

extent of the impairment loss, if any. Impairment losses are recognized as expense in the statement of profit and loss and other

comprehensive income. Impairment losses on available for sale investments are recognized by reclassifying the losses accumulated in

the fair value reserve to statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income. Impairment losses recognized in the statement of

profit and loss and other comprehensive income on equity instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed through the

statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income.

Property acquired, constructed or in the course of construction for sale in the ordinary course of business, rather than to be held for rental

or capital appreciation, is classified as development properties and is measured at lower of cost and net realizable value.

All project costs incurred or to be incurred are capitalized as a cost of development properties and mainly includes costs / rights for free-

hold and leasehold land, construction cost, planning and design costs, costs of site preparation, professional fees for legal services,

property transfer taxes, construction overheads and other related costs necessary to bring the premises in saleable condition and

development charges.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, based on market prices at the reporting date less

estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessarily to be incurred to make the sale.
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Impairment

Judgments and estimates

4.7 Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables

4.8 Cash and cash equivalents

4.9 Financing arrangements / funding

4.10 Employees benefits 
Short-term employee benefits

The cost of sales recognized in statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income is determined with reference to the costs

incurred on the property sold and an allocation of any non-specific costs based on the total area of land sold for property, in relation to

total area of land. The development charges are recognized in statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income on the basis

of reimbursable development costs recoverable to date from customers on property sold apportioned to total area of land sold in relation

to total area of land. Development charges not recoverable from customers are borne by the Modaraba and charged to statement of profit

and loss and other comprehensive income.

At each reporting date, development properties are assessed for impairment. If these impaired, the carrying amount is reduced to its

selling price less costs to complete and sell. The impairment loss is recognized immediately in the cost of revenue in the statement of

profit and loss and other comprehensive income.

The Modaraba reviews the carrying amount of development properties on a regular basis. Carrying amount is adjusted where the net

realizable value is below the cost.

These are initially recognized when they are originated at the fair value of the consideration receivable and subsequently measured at

amortized cost. These assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable

expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a counter part to engage in a repayment plan with the Modaraba. 

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in statement of financial position at cost. For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and

cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, cash at banks on current, saving and deposit accounts and other short-term highly liquid

instruments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash net of temporary bank or books overdrafts / overdrawn, if any.

Markup / profit bearing funds / loans are recorded at the proceeds received. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortized cost, any

difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognized in the statement of profit and loss and

other comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method. Finance costs are accounted for

on accrual basis and are reported under accrued mark up to the extent of the amount remaining unpaid.

Subordinated funds are classified as equity as per Modaraba Regulations, 2021, whereas, its recognition and measurement has been

made in accordance with applicable accounting and reporting standards.

Interest expense i.e. profit payable is accounted for on the basis of the effective interest method and are included in finance costs which

are charged to income in the period in which these are incurred.

Borrowings are reported under profit payable to the extent of the amount remaining unpaid and are classified as current liabilities unless

the Modaraba has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid

if the Modaraba has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and

the obligation can be estimated reliably.
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Defined contribution plan

Defined benefit plan

Judgment and estimates 

4.11 Taxation

Current

Levy

The defined benefit plan represents an unfunded and unrecognized gratuity scheme for its eligible employees completing prescribed

period of service in accordance with service rules of the Modaraba. Defined benefit plans provide an amount of gratuity that an employee

will receive on or after retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation. A defined

benefit plan is a plan that is not a defined contribution plan. The liability recognized in the statement of financial position in respect of

defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligations at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan

assets. 

The defined benefit obligations are calculated annually by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the

calculation results in a potential asset for the Modaraba, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits

available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plans. The present values of the

defined benefit obligations are determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate

bonds or the market rates on government bond. These are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have

terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension obligation. Remeasurement gains / losses are recognized in other

comprehensive income. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit

obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss and other

comprehensive income.

In determining the liability for long-service payments management must make an estimate of salary increases over the following seven

years, the discount rate for the next seven years to use in the present value calculation, and the number of employees expected to leave

before they receive the benefits.    

Income tax comprises of current tax and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except to the

extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity (if any), and in which case the tax amounts

are recognized directly in other comprehensive income or equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting

period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is

subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

In accordance with the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, computation of final taxes is not based on taxable income. Therefore, as per IAS 12 

Application Guidance on Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes issued by the ICAP, these fall within the scope of IFRIC 21 / IAS 

37 and accordingly have been classified as levy in these financial statements, if any, except for taxes on dividends, if any, on the 

Company’s investments in subsidiaries or associates which are specifically within the scope of IAS 12 and hence these continue to be 

categorized as current income tax.

A defined contribution plan is a recognized post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contribution into a separate

entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans

are recognized as an employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income when they are due.

Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

The Modaraba operates a defined contribution plan in the form of recognized provident fund scheme for all eligible employees.

Contributions to fund are made monthly by the Modaraba and employee at 8.33% of the basic salary. The Modaraba's contributions are

recognized as employee benefit expense when they are due. If contribution payments exceed the contribution due for service, the excess

is recognized as an asset.

The Modaraba designate the amount calculated on taxable income using the notified tax rate as an income tax within the scope of IAS 12

‘Income Taxes’ and recognize it as current income tax expense. Any excess over the amount designated as income tax, is then

recognized as a levy falling under the scope of IFRIC 21/IAS 37.
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Deferred

Judgment and estimates

Off-setting 

4.12 Trade and other payables

4.13 Financial instruments 

Recognition and initial measurement

Financial assets

Significant judgment is required in determining the income tax expenses and corresponding provision for tax. There are many

transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain as these matters are being contested at various legal

forums. Modaraba recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the

final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and

deferred tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such determination is made. 

Further, the carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and is adjusted to reflect the current assessment of

future taxable profits. If required, carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient

taxable profits to allow the benefit of part or all of that recognized deferred tax asset to be utilized. Any such reduction shall be reversed to

the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when

the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a

legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

These amounts represent liabilities for supplies and services provided to the Modaraba prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid.

The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 60 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current

liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognized initially at their fair value and

subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of bank balances, loans and advances to employees / counter parties and due to

counterparties, are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Modaraba becomes a party to the contractual provisions of

the instrument. This includes regular way trades: purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time

frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Bank balances and loans and advances to employees / counter parties are recognised when funds are transferred to the banks /

employees / counterparties. The Modaraba recognises due to counterparties when funds reach the Modaraba.

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method on all major temporary differences arising between the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax credits and unused tax losses to the extent that it

is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, carry forward unused tax assets and

unused tax losses can be utilized. The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the

extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax asset and liability is measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to the year when the asset is realized or the liability is

settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

All financial instruments are measured initially at fair value plus transaction cost, except in the case of financial assets and financial 

liabilities recorded at fair value through profit and loss.

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive

income (OCI) and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the

Modarabas business model for managing them.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to 

collect contractual cash flows and its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 

profit on the principal amount outstanding. The Modaraba includes in this category short-term non-financing receivables, accrued income 

and other receivables.
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Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)

 
Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Debt Instrument

The Modaraba measures debt instruments at FVOCI if both of the following conditions are met:

Equity Instrument

Derecognition of financial asset

 

(a)  Its contractual terms do not give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of principal and profit on the 

principal 

(b)  It is not held within a business model whose objective is either to collect contractual cash flows, or to both collect contractual cash 

      flows and sell; or

(c)  At initial recognition, it is irrevocably designated as measured at FVPL when doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a 

      measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the 

      gains and losses on them on different bases.

(a)  The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling; and

(b)  The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and profit 

on        the principal amount outstanding.

For debt instruments at FVOCI, profit income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the 

profit or loss account and computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value 

changes are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised in Other 

Comprehensive Income is recycled to profit or loss.

A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) if any of following conditions are met:

Any gain or loss on arising on derecognisation is charged to profit or loss.

Upon initial recognition, the Modaraba can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments designated at FVOCI 

when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 - 'Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading'. The classification 

is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss account. Dividends are recognised as other income in the 

statement of profit or loss account when the right of payment has been established, except when the Modaraba benefits from such 

proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in Other Comprehensive Income. 

Equity instruments designated at FVOCI are not subject to impairment assessment.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised where 

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or the Modaraba has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the 

asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a pass-through 

arrangement and the Modaraba has:

(a)  transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset; or

(b)  neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of  the asset.

When the Modaraba has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset (or has entered into a pass-through arrangement), and 

has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is 

recognised to the extent of the Modaraba’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Modaraba also recognises an 

associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that 

the Modaraba has retained. The Modaraba derecognises a financial liability when the obligation under the liability is discharged, 

cancelled or expired.
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Financial Liabilities

Derecognition of financial liabilities

4.14 Impairment
Financial assets 

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Non-financial assets

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as

held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value

and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are

subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses

are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities comprise contractual trade and other payables, loans, accrued markup, etc.

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Company also 

derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which 

case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value. On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference 

between the carrying amount extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is 

recognized in statement of profit or loss.

The Modaraba has adopted the requirement of IFRS 9, 'Financial Instruments' with respect to Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model. The

ECL has an impact on the assets of the Modaraba which are exposed to credit risk. Provision for non-performing Islamic financing is

made in accordance with the Modaraba Regulations 2021 for modarabas issued by SECP vide SRO 284 (I) / 2021 dated March 05, 2021

and subsequent amendments made therein, and is charged to profit or loss. The Modaraba while recognizing provisioning for impaired

assets has considered the amount which is higher of: 

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of the assets or its cash generating unit exceeds its estimated recoverable

amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash generating units are

allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit and then to reduce the carrying

amounts of the other assets in the unit on a pro rata basis. Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting

date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the

estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to that extent that the asset’s carrying amount

after the reversal does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, if no

impairment loss had been recognized.

-   the provisioning required under the Modaraba Regulations, 2021; and
-   the provisioning required under IFRS 9 using the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model.

The Modaraba has adopted the requirements of ECL model as given in IFRS 9 using the modified retrospective approach. A lifetime ECL

is recorded on Diminishing Musharikah and Morabaha Financing in which there have been significant increase in credit risk and which are

credit impaired as on the reporting date. A 12 month ECL is recorded on Diminishing Musharikah and Morabaha Financing in which there

have been insignificant credit risk. The Modaraba applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure Expected Credit Loss (ECL) for

Ijarah rent receivable and other receivables.

Furthermore, the management has made an assessment of impairment under expected credit loss model of IFRS 9 for financial assets

other than financing assets i.e. balances with banks and other financial assets, and concluded that impact is not material to the financial

statements.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to

set-off the recognized amounts and the Modaraba intends to either settle on a net basis, or to recognize the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.

The carrying amount of the Modaraba’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each

reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable

amount is estimated. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash flows that largely are

independent from other assets and groups. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is the greater of its value in use

and its fair value less cost to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present values using a

pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash 
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4.15 Provisions
Recognition and measurement

Judgement and estimates

4.16 Contract liability

4.17 Earnings per certificate

4.18 Contingencies and commitments

Capital commitments, unless those are actual liabilities, are not incorporated in the books of accounts.

Judgement and estimates

4.19 Dividends

4.20 Segment reporting

Provisions for legal claims and make good obligations are recognized when the Modaraba has a present legal or constructive obligation

as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably

estimated. Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering

the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognized even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in

the same class of obligations may be small. 

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation

at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market

assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is

recognized as interest expense.

As the actual outflows can differ from estimates made for provisions due to changes in laws, regulations, public expectations, technology,

prices and conditions, and can take place many years in the future, the carrying amounts of provisions are reviewed at each reporting

date and adjusted to take account of such changes. Any adjustments to the amount of previously recognized provision is recognized in

the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income unless the provision was originally recognized as part of cost of an asset.

A contract liability is the obligation of the Modaraba to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Modaraba has received

consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Modaraba transfers

goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is

earlier). Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Modaraba performs under the contract. It also includes refund liabilities

arising out of customers ‘right to claim amounts from the Modaraba on account of contractual delays in delivery of performance

obligations and incentive on target achievements.

Earnings per certificate is calculated by dividing the profit after taxation for the year by weighted average number of certificates

outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per certificate is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary certificate

holders by taking into account the conversion of any diluted potential ordinary certificate.

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Modaraba has a possible obligation as a result of past events, whose existence will be

confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the

Modaraba; or the Modaraba has a present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not probable that an

outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or the amount of the obligation cannot be

measured with sufficient reliability.

The Modaraba reviews the status of all pending litigations and claims against the Modaraba. Based on the judgment and the advice of the

legal advisors for the estimated financial outcome, appropriate disclosure or provision is made. The actual outcome of these litigations

and claims can have an effect on the carrying amounts of the liabilities recognized at the reporting date.

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognized as a liability in the period in which the dividends are approved.

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Modaraba that is engaged either in providing product or services (business segment), or

in providing products or services within a particular economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards

that are different from those of other segments. The Modaraba has only one reportable segment.
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4.21 Revenue recognition

Ijarah rentals

Morabaha transaction

Musharikah transaction

Documentation and processing charges

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized in profit or loss as other income when:

·         the Modaraba’s right to receive payment have been established;
·         is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Modaraba; and
·         the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Other income

Ijarah income is recognized in income on an accrual basis as and when the rental becomes due unless another systematic basis is more

representative of the time pattern on which the benefit of use derived from the leased asset is diminished. Unrealized ijarah income

pertaining to non-performing ijarah is held in a suspense account, where necessary, in accordance with the requirements of the

Modaraba Regulations, 2021.

Profit on transactions under morabaha arrangements is recognized on pro-rata basis taking into account the elapsed duration for

payment of morabaha amounts payable by the customer. Profit not due for payment in the current year is deferred by the accounting for

unearned morabaha income with a corresponding credit to deferred morabaha income which is recorded as a liability. The same is then

recognized as revenue on a time proportionate basis as and when the due dates approach for payment of recoverable amounts by the

customers.

Profit on musharikah arrangement is recognized on accrual basis, based on the amount of outstanding principal.

Documentation and processing charges are recognized as income on receipt basis. 

Sale of development properties

Revenue from the sale of development properties is recognized at the point in time when the performance obligations arising from the

contract with a customer is satisfied and the amount of revenue that it expects to be entitled to can be determined. This usually occurs

when control of the asset is transferred to the customer, which is when these properties are transferred to the customers. Invoices are

generated and revenue is recognized at that point in time. All the sales are on advance basis. Revenue is measured based on the

consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue is disclosed net

of taxes, returns, rebates, discounts and other allowances, if any.

Profit on bank deposit

Return on bank deposits is accounted for on a time proportionate basis using the applicable rate of return / interest.

Other income, if any, is recognized on accrual basis. 
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4.22   Initial application of IFRS 9

Statement of financial position

The Modaraba has adopted the requirements of ECL model as given in IFRS 9 using the modified retrospective approach. A lifetime ECL

is recorded on Ijarah Financing, Diminishing Musharikah Financing and Morabaha Financing in which there have been significant

increase in credit risk from date of initial recognition and which are credit impaired as on the reporting date.

Furthermore, the management has made an assessment of expected credit loss model complying with the requirement of IFRS 9 for

financial asset as at December 31, 2024, and recorded that impact in the financial statements. Accordingly, the impact has been

accounted for in the opening retained earnings of Modaraba.

The following table shows the original measurement categories in accordance with IAS 39 and the new measurement categories under

IFRS 9 for the Modaraba's financial assets as at December 31, 2023:

 As 

previously 

reported 

 Changes due to 

initial adoption of 

IFRS 9 increase / 

(decrease) 

 After initial 

adoption of 

IFRS 9 

Long term musharikah 

investment - secured
 Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 458,544,566  (47,807,517)         410,737,049     

Long term morabaha 

investment - secured
 Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 13,502,006    (3,621,855)          9,880,151        

Short term morabaha 

investment - secured
 Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 173,447,518  (15,008,896)         158,438,622     

Current maturity of long 

term investment
 Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 369,755,675  (12,099,978)         357,655,697     

Ijarah rental receivable  Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 111,362,665  (322,881)             111,039,784     

Morabaha profit 

receivable
 Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 5,319,857      (386,584)             4,933,273        

Musharikah profit 

receivable
 Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 22,194,533    (629,297)             21,565,236      

Expected credit losses 

against advances and 

other receivables

 Loans and receivables  Amortised cost (67,316,336)   3,925,749           (63,390,587)     

Revenue reserves - 

accumulated losses
(680,257,523) (75,951,260)         (756,208,783)    

-                     

As at January 01, 2024

Rupees

 Original classification 

under IAS 39 

 New 

classification 

under IFRS 9 

56Annual Report 2024



2024
2023

5
Tan

g
ib

le fixed
 assets

N
o

te
R

u
p

ees
R

upees

Ijarah assets
5.1

185,227,848
   

   
   

148,068,219
   

   
A

ssets in ow
n use

5.2
3,571,658

   
   

   
   

 
4,066,485

   
   

   
 

188,799,506
   

   
   

152,134,704
   

   

5.1
Ijarah

 assets
N

E
T

 B
O

O
K

 V
A

L
U

E

A
s at

A
s at

A
s at

C
h

arg
e 

A
s at

A
s at

L
ife

1 Jan
u

ary 2024
31 D

ecem
b

er 2024
1 Jan

u
ary 2024

fo
r th

e year
31 D

ecem
b

er 2024
31 D

ecem
b

er 2024
Y

ears

P
lant and m

achinery
31

1,357,190
   

   
       38,139,000 

(177,905,805)
   

 
171,590,385

   
   

   
242,843,226

   
   

897,592
   

   
   

  
(94,977,187)

   
  

148,763,631
   

   
   

   
22,826,754

   
   

   
   

   
A

s per lease term

V
ehicles

270,704,609
   

   
     130,775,032 

    (109,896,192)
291,583,449

   
   

   
218,008,61

1
   

   
26,839,060

   
   

(95,429,225)
   

  
149,418,446

   
   

   
   

142,165,003
   

   
   

   
 

A
s per lease term

C
onsum

er products
139,707,680

   
   

       16,445,896 
       (83,567,980)

72,585,596
   

   
   

  
112,849,423

   
   

21,734,816
   

   
(78,439,190)

   
  

56,145,049
   

   
   

   
  

16,440,547
   

   
   

   
   

A
s per lease term

H
am

ara G
har

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

         3,915,493 
                       -   

3,915,493
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

119,949
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
119,949

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,795,544

   
   

   
   

   
  

A
s per lease term

2024
721,769,479

   
   

189,275,421
   

 
(371,369,977)

   
 

539,674,923
   

   
   

573,701,260
   

   
49,591,417

   
   

(268,845,602)
   

354,447,075
   

   
   

   
185,227,848

   
   

   
   

 

N
E

T B
O

O
K

 V
A

LU
E

A
s at

A
s at

A
s at

C
harge 

A
s at

A
s at

Life
1 January 2023

31 D
ecem

ber 2023
1 January 2023

for the year
31 D

ecem
ber 2023

31 D
ecem

ber 2023
Y

ears

P
lant and m

achinery
383,956,167

   
   

         1,050,000 
       (73,648,977)

31
1,357,190

   
   

   
308,382,146

   
   

5,448,522
   

   
  

(70,987,442)
   

  
242,843,226

   
   

   
   

68,513,964
   

   
   

   
   

A
s per lease term

V
ehicles

367,038,224
   

   
       13,958,913 

    (110,292,528)
270,704,609

   
   

   
265,275,008

   
   

40,660,040
   

   
(87,926,437)

   
  

218,008,61
1

   
   

   
   

52,695,998
   

   
   

   
   

A
s per lease term

C
onsum

er products
155,101,180

   
   

       12,995,000 
       (28,388,500)

139,707,680
   

   
   

95,342,410
   

   
  

39,415,745
   

   
(21,908,732)

   
  

112,849,423
   

   
   

   
26,858,257

   
   

   
   

   
A

s per lease term

2023
906,095,571

   
   

28,003,913
   

   
(212,330,005)

   
 

721,769,479
   

   
   

668,999,564
   

   
85,524,307

   
   

(180,822,61
1)

   
573,701,260

   
   

   
   

148,068,219
   

   
   

   
 

5.1.1
D

epreciation charge for the year has been recognized in incom
e from

 ijarah rentals.

5.1.2
T

he cost of fully depreciated ijarah assets that are still in use am
ount to R

s. 289,590,258. (D
ecem

ber 31, 2023: R
s. 475,817,063).

5.1.3
Transfers represent the assets disposed through negotiation after expiry / term

ination of Ijarah. H
ow

ever, in view
 of large num

ber of disposals, detail of each disposal has not been given.

C
O

S
T

D
E

P
R

E
C

IA
T

IO
N

D
escriptio

n
A

d
d

itio
n

s
D

isp
o

sals
D

isp
o

sals

D
escription

A
dditions

D
isposals

D
isposals

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
(R

upees) ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
(R

upees) ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

C
O

S
T

D
E

P
R

E
C

IA
T

IO
N
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5.2
A

ssets in ow
n use

N
E

T B
O

O
K

 V
A

LU
E

A
s at

A
s at

A
s at

C
harge 

A
s at

A
s at

Life
1 January 2024

31 D
ecem

ber 2024
1 January 2024

for the 
period

31 D
ecem

ber 2024
31 D

ecem
ber 2024

Y
ears

4,749,645
          

          854,556 
              (215,445)

5,388,756
                

3,404,291
              

566,098
       

(127,084)
          

3,843,305
                

1,545,451
                 

3 to 7

2,283,900
          

                    -                    (14,100)
2,269,800

                
2,029,677

              
100,964
       

(14,100)
            

2,116,541
                

153,259
                    

7

4,330,800
          

                    -              (1,372,500)
2,958,300

                
1,863,892

              
593,960
       

(1,372,500)
       

1,085,352
                

1,872,948
                 

5

11,364,345
        

854,556
         

(1,602,045)
           

10,616,856
              

7,297,860
              

1,261,022
    

(1,513,684)
       

7,045,198
                

3,571,658
                 

8746445
5,331,436

              

1,966,424
              

N
E

T B
O

O
K

 V
A

LU
E

A
s at

A
s at

A
s at

C
harge 

A
s at

A
s at

Life
1 January 2023

31 D
ecem

ber 2023
1 January 2023

for the Y
ear

31 D
ecem

ber 2023
31 D

ecem
ber 2023

Y
ears

4,749,645
          

                    -                             -   
4,749,645

                
2,761,397

              
642,894
       

-
                   

3,404,291
                

1,345,354
                 

3 to 7

2,263,400
          

            20,500 
                          -   

2,283,900
                

1,779,808
              

249,869
       

-
                   

2,029,677
                

254,223
                    

7

2,450,800
          

       2,612,000 
              (732,000)

4,330,800
                

1,949,770
              

646,122
       

(732,000)
          

1,863,892
                

2,466,908
                 

5

9,463,845
          

2,632,500
      

(732,000)
              

11,364,345
              

6,490,975
              

1,538,885
    

(732,000)
          

7,297,860
                

4,066,485
                 

5.2.1

5.2.2
A

bove assets include fully depreciated assets of R
s. 4,466,469. (D

ecem
ber 31, 2023: R

s. 2,106,790).

5.2.3
D

etail of operating fixed assets disposed of during the year is as follow
s:

2024
O

ffice equipm
ent - cell phone

149,990
             

61,629
           

88,361
                  

22,329
                     

(66,032)
                  

A
 m

obile phone w
as sold to the previous C

E
O

 at less than its book value.

O
ffice equipm

ent - Laptop 
65,455

               
65,455

           
-

                       
25,000

                     
25,000

                   
S

old to P
M

S
L.

Furniture &
 Fixture

14,100
               

14,100
           

-
                       

3,500
                       

3,500
                     

S
old to P

M
S

L.

V
ehicle

1,372,500
          

1,372,500
      

-
                       

2,600,000
                

2,600,000
              

M
usharikah facility to A

li Ijaz.
1,602,045

          
1,513,684

      
88,361

                  
2,650,829

                
2,562,468

              

V
ehicle (2023)

732,000
             

732,000
         

-
                       

1,000,000
                

1,000,000
              

O
pen m

arket

C
O

S
T

D
E

P
R

E
C

IA
TIO

N

D
escription

A
dditions

D
isposal

D
isposal

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
(R

upees) ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

O
ffice equipm

ent

D
escription

A
dditions

D
isposal

D
isposal

Furniture and fixtures

V
ehicles

2024

C
O

S
T

D
E

P
R

E
C

IA
TIO

N

D
epreciation charge for the year has been recognized in adm

inistrative and general expenses.

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
(R

upees) ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

O
ffice equipm

ent

Furniture and fixtures

V
ehicles

2023

M
ode of 

D
isposal

------------------------------------------ R
upees -----------------------------------------

D
escription

C
ost

A
ccum

ulated 
D

epreciation
N

et B
ook value

S
ale P

roceeds
G

ain / (Loss)
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2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees
6 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer software

Cost 4,495,000             4,495,000            
Accumulated amortization (4,106,668)            (3,439,393)           

388,332 1,055,607            

6.1 Cost

Balance as at January 01, 4,495,000             4,495,000            
Additions -                        -                       

Balance as at December 31, 4,495,000             4,495,000            

6.2 Accumulated amortization

Balance as at January 01, (3,439,393)            (2,772,750)           
Amortization for the year 33 (667,275)               (666,643)              

Balance as at December 31, (4,106,668)            (3,439,393)           

Life (Years) 3 3

6.3

6.4

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

7 LONG TERM MUSHARIKAH INVESTMENT - SECURED

Long term musharikah investment 7.3 1,147,396,206      805,245,048        
Less: Expected credit loss against muhsarikah investment on adoption of IFRS 9 (32,229,102)          -                       
Less: Current portion of long term musharikah investment 12 (424,717,327)        (346,700,482)       

690,449,778         458,544,566        

7.1 This represents long term musharikah investment - secured for a term of 1 to 10 years.

7.2

7.3 Aging of long term musharikah investment-secured

Classification
Considered good 964,507,551         599,503,393        
Portfolio classified as non-performing 
Other asset especially mentioned (OAEM) 61,464,310           54,439,706          
Substandard 173,656                32,607,482          
Doubtful 7,540,398             3,145,244            
Loss 113,710,291         115,549,223        

182,888,655         205,741,655        
7.4 1,147,396,206      805,245,048        

7.4
7.5
7.6

7.7

The amortization for the year has been charged under the head administrative

and general expenses.
Above intangible assets include fully amortized assets of Rs. 2,495,000 (2023:

Rs. 2,495,000).

The profit charged on these facilities range from 13.05% to 23.12% per annum 

(2023: 11.63% to 30.04% per annum).

This represents classification into the categories as defined in the Modaraba Regulations, 2021.
These are secured against registered vehicles and equipment in the name of Modaraba, personal guarantees and post dated cheques.
The maximum outstanding amount of Musharikah loans given to Key Management Personnel Mr. Mudassar Kaiser Pal at any time during the

year was nil. (December 31, 2023: Rs. 2,914,913).
The maximum outstanding amount of Musharikah loans given to other employee of Modaraba Mr. Kashif Javed at any time during the year

was Rs. 93,548. (December 31, 2023: nil).

7.8
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7.8 Expected credit loss against muhsarikah investment on adoption of IFRS 9

Opening balance                           -                            -   
Expected credit allowance on initial application of IFRS 9             47,807,517 

Opening balance after initial adoption of IFRS 9             47,807,517                          -   

          (15,578,415)                         -   

Closing balance             32,229,102                          -   

2024 2023Note

Rupees Rupees

8 LONG TERM MORABAHA INVESTMENT - SECURED

Long term morabaha investment 61,001,309           58,533,457          
Add: Unearned morabaha income 4,634,330             13,445,167          

65,635,639           71,978,624          
Less: Expected credit loss against long term moarabaha investment on adoption of IFRS 9 (40,306)                 -                           

65,595,333           71,978,624          

Less: Current portion of long term morabaha investment 12 (55,651,727)          (50,913,112)         
9,943,606             21,065,512          

Less: Current portion of unearned morabaha income 12 (3,016,570)            (7,563,506)           

6,927,036             13,502,006          

8.1

8.2

8.3 Aging of long term morabaha investment - secured

Classification
Considered good 3,749,992             18,322,205          
Portfolio classified as non-performing 
Other asset especially mentioned (OAEM) -                            -                           
Substandard 8,799,450             25,599,588          
Doubtful -                            5,811,664            
Loss 48,451,867           8,800,000            

57,251,317           40,211,252          
8.4 61,001,309           58,533,457          

8.4

8.5

8.6  Expected credit loss against long term moarabaha investment on adoption of IFRS 9

Opening balance                           -                            -   
Expected credit allowance on initial application of IFRS 9               3,621,855 

Opening balance after initial adoption of IFRS 9               3,621,855                          -   

(3,581,549)            -                       
Closing balance 40,306                  -                       

9 LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Punjab Modaraba Services (Private) Limited (PMSL) 9.1 1,219,050             -                       
Others 9.2 203,444                203,444               

1,422,494             203,444               

9.1

9.2

The rate of profit on morabaha finances ranges from 16.50% to 26.41% per

annum (2023: 19.02% to 25.59%  per annum).

Less: Reversal during the year

This represents long term Morabaha investment - secured for a term of 1 to 5

years.

This represents classification into the categories as defined in the Modaraba

Regulations, 2021.

These are secured against mortgage of properties, hypothecation, personal

guarantees and demand promissory notes.

Less: Reversal during the year

This represents a security deposit remitted to PMSL, a related party, for the

leased premises.

This represents non-interest bearing security deposits paid to Lahore Electric

Supply Company, Pakistan Mobile Communication Limited and Central

Depository Company of Pakistan.
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10 DEFERRED TAX

Ijarah assets 22,083,828           32,733,501          
Assets in own use 723,947                302,402               
Provision against financing / investments 38,320,010           34,634,871          
Gratuity 2,202,077             2,688,735            
Brought forward tax losses 30,909,160           39,298,468          
Deferred tax asset as of December 31 94,239,022           109,657,977        

Deferred tax asset as of January 01 (109,657,977)        (61,046,067)         
Deferred tax related OCI items 82,386                  901,450               

Deferred tax credited / (charged) to profit or loss 37 (15,336,569)          49,513,360          

10.1

Gross amount Tax effect Gross amount Tax effect

Provisions against financing / investments 304,150,376       88,203,609      264,025,035         76,567,260          
Unused tax losses 372,284,152       107,962,404    278,297,607         80,706,306          
Unused tax credits -                      12,506,089      -                        7,427,341            

676,434,528       208,672,102    542,322,642         164,700,907        

10.2 Deferred tax on tax losses not recognized would expire as follows:

Tax losses Expiry date - 
tax year

Tax losses Expiry date - tax 

year
Rupees Rupees

123,694,739       2026 47,369,488           2025

31,538,290         2027 113,456,004         2026

-                      2028 16,519,347           2027

-                      2029 -                        2028

92,959,636         2030 -                        2029

124,091,487       2031 100,952,768         2030

372,284,152       278,297,607         

10.3 Tax credits not recognized would expire as follows:

Tax credits Expiry date - tax 

year

Tax credits Expiry date - tax year

Rupees Rupees
Turnover tax 3,403,930           2027 3,403,930             2027

Turnover tax 4,023,411           2028 4,023,411             2028
Turnover tax 5,078,748           2029

12,506,089         7,427,341             

11 SHORT TERM MORABAHA INVESTMENT-SECURED

Short term morabaha investment           349,426,355 375,906,891        

Less: Expected credit losses against short term morabaha investment 11.3         (213,374,252)        (202,459,373)

136,052,103         173,447,518        

11.1

The management, based on their projections assessment of future taxable

profits, believes that Modaraba will be able to achieve sufficient taxable profits

in the future to adjust the recognized deferred tax assets and accordingly has

recorded the asset on such basis as of December 31, 2024.

Rupees - 2024 Rupees - 2023

Rupees - 2024 Rupees - 2023

This represents short term Morabaha investment-secured for a term of 3

months to 1 year.
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11.2

11.3 Expected credit losses against short term morabaha investment

Opening balance as per prudential regulation 202,459,373         211,503,873        

Charge during the year 1,343,745             -                       
Reversals during the year -                            (9,044,500)           

1,343,745             (9,044,500)           

Closing balance as per prudential reguslation 203,803,118         202,459,373        

Opening balance -                            -                           
Expected credit allowance on initial application of IFRS 9 15,008,896           -                           
Opening balance after initial adoption of IFRS 9 15,008,896           -                           
(Reversal) / Allowance for Expected credit losses on adoption of IFRS 9 (5,437,762)            
Closing balance of allowance on adoption of IFRS 9 9,571,134             -                           

Total expected credit losses against short term morabaha investment 213,374,252         202,459,373        

11.4 Aging of short term morabaha investment-secured

Classification
Considered good 29,606,451

           
-

                           
Portfolio classified as non-performing 
Other asset especially mentioned (OAEM) -

                            
-

                           
Substandard -

                            
3,010,000

            Doubtful -
                            

6,990,000
            Loss 319,819,904

         
365,906,891

        319,819,904
         

375,906,891
        

11.5 349,426,355
         

375,906,891
        11.5

11.6

12 CURRENT MATURITY OF LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

Current portion of long term musharikah investment 280,838,668
         

197,507,829
        Principal due but not received 143,878,659

         
149,192,653

        Less: Expected credit losses against musharikah investment 12.1 (36,922,428)
          

(26,621,425)
         106,956,231

         
122,571,228

        387,794,899
         

320,079,057
        Current portion of long term morabaha investment 6,272,375

             
13,151,311

          Principal due but not received 49,379,352

           

37,761,801

          Add: Unearned morabaha income 3,016,570

             

7,563,506

            Less: Expected credit losses against morabaha investment 12.2 (16,184,108)

          

(8,800,000)

           36,211,814

           

36,525,307

          430,279,088

         

369,755,675

        12.1 Expected credit losses against musharikah investment

Opening balance 26,621,425

           

28,287,798

          Allowance for Expected credit losses on adoption of IFRS 9 8,262,001

             

-

                           Opening balance after initial adoption of IFRS 9 34,883,426

           

28,287,798

          Allowance for Expected credit losses 617,683

                Provision / (Reversels) as per prudential regulations 1,421,319

             

(1,666,373)

           2,039,002

             

(1,666,373)

           Closing balance 36,922,428

           

26,621,425

          

The rate of profit on morabaha finances ranges from 23.42% to 26.43% per

annum (2023: 23.42% to 26.43% per annum).

This represents classification into the categories as defined in the Modaraba

Regulations, 2021.

These are secured against mortgage of properties, hypothecation, personal

guarantees and demand promissory notes.
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12.2 Expected credit losses against long term morabaha investment

Opening balance 8,800,000             8,800,000            
Allowance for Expected credit losses on adoption of IFRS 9 3,837,978             -                       
Opening balance after initial adoption of IFRS 9 12,637,978           8,800,000            
Allowance for Expected credit losses 3,546,130             -                       

Closing balance 16,184,108           8,800,000            
13 IJARAH RENTAL RECEIVABLES

Ijarah rental receivable 157,298,808         189,621,155        
Less: Expected credit losses against ijarah rental receivable 13.1 (80,304,753)          (78,258,490)         

76,994,055
           111,362,665

        
13.1 Expected credit losses against ijarah rental receivable

Opening balance as per prudential regulations 78,258,490
           

78,667,052
          

Charge during the year 1,610,833
             

6,360,932
            

Reversal during the year (1,638,685)
            

(6,769,494)
           (27,852)

                 
(408,562)

              Closing balance as per prudential regulations 78,230,638
           

78,258,490
          

Opening balance -
                            

-
                           Allowance for Expected credit losses on adoption of IFRS 9 322,881

                Opening balance after initial adoption of IFRS 9 322,881
                

-
                           Allowance for Expected credit losses 1,751,234

             
-

                           
Closing balance of allowance on adoption of IFRS 9 2,074,115

             
-

                           
Total expected credit losses against ijarah rental receivable 80,304,753 78,258,490

13.2 Aging of ijarah rental receivable

Classification
Considered good 23,186,563

           

-

                           Portfolio classified as non-performing 
Other asset especially mentioned (OAEM) 550,660

                

1,751,532

            Substandard 2,815,760

             

9,799,849

            Doubtful 13,620,916

           

1,368,894

            Loss 117,124,909

         

176,700,880

        
13.4 134,112,245

         

189,621,155

        
157,298,808

         

189,621,155

        13.3 Future Ijarah rentals receivable

Up to one year             24,395,311         103,090,586 
Above one year and up to five year           117,837,390           33,338,027 

          142,232,701         136,428,613 

13.4

13.5

13.6
Mr. Mudassar Kaiser Pal -

                            

3,055,316

            
Mr. Zeeshan Ahmed 3,626,324

             

-

                           

Mr. Saqib Shamim 1,580,438

             

2,049,350

            

Mr. Amir Aftab 1,165,724

             

-

                           

Other employees 2,196,519

             

3,315,587

            
8,569,005

             

8,420,253

            
14 SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

Opening balance 350,000,000

         

200,000,000

        

Investments made during the year 148,389,568

         

516,000,000

        

Matured during the year (388,573,060)

        

(366,000,000)

       

Aggregate amount of future ijarah rentals receivable on the basis of agreements

executed up to reporting date are as follows:

This represents classification into the categories as defined in the Modaraba

Regulations, 2021.
These are secured against registered vehicles and equipment in the name of

Modaraba, personal guarantees and post dated cheques.

The maximum amount outstanding of Ijarah loans given to key management 

                     
2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees
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Closing balance 109,816,508         350,000,000        



 First Habib Modaraba  NRSP 
Microfinance 
Bank Limited 

 Bank Islami 
Pakistan 
Limited 

 U Microfinance 
Bank Limited 

Total

Opening balance 250,000,000                 67,000,000         33,000,000      -                        350,000,000        
Investments made during the year -                                70,675,000         77,714,568      -                        148,389,568        
Matured during the year (250,000,000)                (67,000,000)        (71,573,060)     -                        (388,573,060)       

Closing balance -                                70,675,000         39,141,508      -                        109,816,508        

 First Habib Modaraba  NRSP Microfinance 

Bank Limited 

Bank Islami Pakistan 

Limited

 U Microfinance Bank 

Limited 

Total

Opening balance 200,000,000
                 

-
                      

-
                   

-
                        

200,000,000
        Investments made during the year 300,000,000

                 
133,000,000

       
33,000,000

      
50,000,000

           
516,000,000

        Matured during the year (250,000,000)
                

(66,000,000)
        

-
                   

(50,000,000)
          

(366,000,000)
       

Closing balance 250,000,000
                 

67,000,000
         

33,000,000
      

-
                        

350,000,000
        

14.1

15 DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES

Constructed 25,290,372
           

40,881,225
          Un-constructed -

                        
8,815,359

            25,290,372
           

49,696,584
          15.1

16 ADVANCES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Profit receivable
 - Morabaha investment 16.1 414,536

                

5,319,857

             - Musharikah investment 16.3 19,153,437

           

22,194,533

          19,567,973

           

27,514,390

          Prepayments 3,482,490

             

1,830,921

            Advances 16.5 1,137,766

             

6,794,757

            Non-banking assets 21,060,000

           

-

                           Receivable from provident fund 2,418,150

             

2,349,847

            Other receivables 16.6 201,635,233

         

185,614,583

        
249,301,612

         

224,104,498

        Less: Expected credit losses against advances and other receivables 16.7 (89,502,803)

          

(67,316,336)

         159,798,809

         

156,788,162

        16.1 Morabaha profit receivable

Morabaha profit receivable 14,993,944

           

28,719,652

          
Less: Income transferred to suspense 16.2 (14,494,221)

          

(23,399,795)

         
Less: Expected credit loss on adoption of IFRS 9 16.2 (85,187)

                 
(14,579,408)

          

(23,399,795)

         414,536

                

5,319,857

            16.2 Morabaha income transferred to suspense

Opening balance as per prudential regulation 23,399,795

           

20,950,163

          
Addition during the year 3,614,112

             

2,449,632

            
Transfer / reversal during the year (12,519,686)

          

-

                           
Closing balance as per prudential regulation 14,494,221

           

23,399,795

          Opening balance -

                            

-

                           
Allowance for Expected credit losses on adoption of IFRS 9 386,584

                

-

                           

Opening balance after initial adoption of IFRS 9 386,584

                

-

                           

Rupees-2024

Rupees-2023

These carrying mark-up at a rate ranging from 9.57% to 24.15% (2023: 16.5%

to 24.15%) per annum.

Development properties are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV).
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2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees



Reversal during the year (301,397)               

Closing balance of allowance on adoption of IFRS 9 85,187                  -                           

Total Morabaha income transferred to suspense 14,579,408           23,399,795          

16.3 Musharikah profit receivable

Musharikah profit receivable 45,591,113           47,933,436          
Less: Income transferred to suspense 16.4 (26,437,676)          (25,738,903)         
Less: Expected credit loss on adoption of IFRS 9 16.4 -                            

(26,437,676)          (25,738,903)         
19,153,437           22,194,533          

16.4 Musharikah income transferred to suspense

Opening balance 25,738,903           22,437,018          
Addition during the year 13,902,109           10,497,342          
Reversal of suspension during the year (13,203,336)

          (7,195,457)
           

Closing balance 26,437,676
           

25,738,903
          

Opening balance of allowance on adoption of IFRS 9 -
                            

-
                           

Allowance for Expected credit losses on adoption of IFRS 9 629,297
                

-
                           

Opening balance after initial adoption of IFRS 9 629,297
                

-
                           

Reversal during the year (629,297)
               

Closing balance of allowance on adoption of IFRS 9 -
                            

-
                           

Total Musharikah income transferred to suspense 26,437,676
           

25,738,903
          

16.5

16.6

16.7 Expected credit losses against advances and other receivables

Opening balance 67,316,336

           
9,955,643

            Reversal booked on initial application of IFRS 9 (3,925,749)

            

-

                       Opening balance after initial adoption of IFRS 9 63,390,587

           

9,955,643

            Allowance during the year 26,112,216

           

57,360,693

          Closing balance 89,502,803

           

67,316,336

          
17 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash at banks
 - Current accounts 9,128,894

             

10,621,161

           - Deposit account 206,038

                

1,382,743

             - Savings accounts 13,681,403

           

221,168,588

         - Current account with State Bank of Pakistan 17,201

                  

99,974

                 
23,033,536

           

233,272,466

        Cash in hand 46,564

                  

272,491

               23,080,100

           

233,544,957

        18 AUTHORIZED, ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP 
MODARABA CERTIFICATE CAPITAL

Authorized certificate capital

50,000,000 modaraba certificates of Rs.10 each 500,000,000 500,000,000

This represents amount recoverable from clients for expenses incurred on their

behalf since the inception of modaraba, including receivables arising from

ijarah, musharikah and morabaha transactions. This also includes an amount of

Rs. 2,541,000 (2023: 2,541,000) receivable from Atif Trader against sale of

vehicle.

This includes advances to employees against expenses amounting to Rs.

168,205 (2023: Rs. 399,369) and advances to employees against salary

amounting to Rs. 479,561 (2023: Rs. 104,440 ) as of reporting date.
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2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees



20,000,000 20,000,000 200,000,000

         

200,000,000

        

14,020,000 14,020,000 140,200,000

         

140,200,000

        

34,020,000 34,020,000 340,200,000

         

340,200,000

        

18.2 Following certificates held by associated companies of the Modaraba:

Number of 
certificates

Rupees Number of 

certificates

Rupees

Punjab Modaraba Services (Pvt.) Limited 13,320,694

         

133,206,940

    

13,320,694

           

133,206,940

        

The Bank of Punjab Employees Gratuity Fund 5,099,500

           

50,995,000

      

5,099,500

             

50,995,000

          

The Bank of Punjab 4,788

                  

47,880

             

4,788

                    

47,880

                 

18,424,982

         

184,249,820

    

18,424,982

           

184,249,820

        

2024 2023
19 RESERVES Note Rupees Rupees

Capital reserve
Statutory reserve 19.1 218,176,678

         

218,176,678

        

Revenue reserves
Accumulated loss (850,373,686)

        

(756,208,783)

       

(632,197,008)

        
(538,032,105)

       

19.1

20 SUBORDINATED FUNDS 500,000,000
         

500,000,000
        

21 REDEEMABLE CAPITAL - PARTICIPATORY AND UNSECURED

Certificate of musharikah - unsecured 1,485,000,000      1,485,000,000     

22 LONG TERM SECURITY DEPOSITS 
Long term security deposits against Ijarah 22.1 50,740,464

           
92,902,796

          
Less: Current maturity of security deposits 25 (42,193,448)

          
(90,762,796)

         8,547,016
             

2,140,000
            

22.1

23 DEFERRED MORABAHA INCOME
Deferred morabaha income - long term 23.1 4,634,330

             

13,445,167

          Less: Current maturity of deferred morabaha income 25 (3,016,570)

            

(7,563,506)

           1,617,760

             

5,881,661

            
23.1

24 STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS - GRATUITY 7,593,368

             

9,271,499

            

These represent receivables against morabaha transactions on deferred

payment basis at profit margin which ranges from 16.5% to 26.45% per annum

(2023 : 19.02% to 25.59%).

Modaraba certificates of Rs. 10 each fully paid in 

cash

Modaraba certificates of Rs. 10 each issued as 

fully paid bonus certificates

2024 2023

Statutory reserve represents profit set aside to comply with the Modaraba

Regulations, 2021 issued by SECP.

This represents funds extended by The Bank of Punjab - parent company i.e. major sponsor

under Musharikah Agreement dated October 27, 2023 as a support to improve the equity

base of the Modaraba and classified as equity under the provisions of Modaraba

Regulations, 2021. This amount is unsecured, repayable in three years time i.e. June 30,

2026 and carries profit at the rate of 18.61% per annum payable semi-annually.

This represents funds provided by the Bank of Punjab - parent company to finance the

working capital requirements of the Modaraba. This amount is unsecured, repayable in

three years time and carries profit at the rate of 18.61% per annum payable semi-annually.

This represents security deposits payable / adjustable in respect of assets given

under Ijarah arrangements (IFAS-2).

The Modaraba operates an approved funded gratuity scheme for all of its permanent

employees. Actuarial valuation of the scheme is carried out every year and the latest

actuarial valuation was carried out as at December 31, 2024 using the Projected Unit Credit

Method.

18.1 Issued, subscribed and paid-up certificate capital

2024 2023 2024 2023
Numbers Numbers Rupees Rupees

Number of employees under the scheme 32                         35                        
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24.1 Movement in the liability recognized in the statement of financial position
Opening net liability 9,271,499             9,659,436            

Amount charged to profit and loss account 2,449,387             2,789,118            
Amount (credited) / charged to other comprehensive income (284,089)               (3,108,447)           
Benefits paid during the year (3,843,429)            (68,608)                

(1,678,131)            (387,937)              
Closing net liability 7,593,368             9,271,499            

24.2 Reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit obligation

Opening balance 9,271,499
             

9,659,436
            

Current service cost 1,310,170
             

1,393,474
            

Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 1,139,217
             

1,395,644
            

Benefits paid (3,843,429)
            

(68,608)
                

Actuarial (gains) / losses from changes in demographic assumptions (6,088)
                   

-
                       Actuarial (gains) / losses from changes in financial assumptions (60,010)

                 
18,385

                 Experience adjustments (217,991)
               

(3,126,832)
           Closing balance 7,593,368 9,271,499

24.3 Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss 

Current service cost 1,310,170
             

1,393,474
            Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 1,139,217

             
1,395,644

            2,449,387
             

2,789,118
            

24.4 Amount chargeable to other comprehensive income

Actuarial (gains) / losses from changes in demographic assumptions (6,088)

                   

-

                       Actuarial (gains) / losses from changes in financial assumptions (60,010)

                 

18,385

                 Experience adjustments (217,991)

               

(3,126,832)

           (284,089)

               

(3,108,447)

           
24.5 Principal actuarial assumptions

Discount rate used for interest cost in profit and loss charge 15.50% 14.50%
Discount rate used for year end obligation 12.25% 15.50%
Salary increase used for year end obligation:

Salary Increase FY2024  N/A  N/A 
Salary Increase FY2025 11.25% 14.50%
Salary Increase FY2026 11.25% 14.50%
Salary Increase FY2027 11.25% 14.50%
Salary Increase FY2028 11.25% 14.50%
Salary Increase FY2029 11.25% 14.50%
Salary Increase FY2030 onward 11.25% 14.50%
Next salary is increased 01-Jan-25 01-Jan-24

Mortality rates SLIC 2001 - 2005 SLIC 2001 - 2005

Setback 1 Year Set back 1 Year
Withdrawal rates  Age-Based Age-Based 
Retirement assumption Age 60 Age 60 

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

24.6 Sensitivity Analysis
Year end sensitivity analysis on defined benefit obligation

Discount Rate + 100 bps 7,110,045 8,575,385
Discount Rate - 100 bps 8,132,952 10,051,437

                         

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
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2024 2023
Rupees Rupees



Salary Increase + 100 bps 8,147,627 10,063,898
Salary Increase -100 bps 7,088,210 8,552,455

24.7

Current service cost 1,087,296             1,393,474            
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 892,343                1,395,644            

1,979,639             2,789,118            
24.8 The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted defined benefits is as follow:

Financial Year  2024 -                        380,796               
Financial Year  2025 617,867                453,218               
Financial Year  2026 660,202                544,205               
Financial Year  2027 1,163,672             1,196,622            
Financial Year  2028 695,416                767,937               
Financial Year  2029 1,850,665             1,970,149            
Financial Year  2030 774,015                1,015,716            
Financial Year  2031 3,000,545             3,800,896            
Financial Year  2032 4,482,040             6,913,884            
Financial Year  2033 698,123                15,678,227          
Financial Year  2034 742,364                157,832,179        
Financial Year  2035 onwards 51,794,462           -                       

24.9 The weighted average duration of the obligation (in years) 7                           8                          

24.10 Funding policy

24.11

Life expectancy / 
Withdrawal rate

Asset volatility

Final salary risk

25 CURRENT MATURITY OF NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current maturity of long term security deposits 22 42,193,448
           

90,762,796
          Current maturity of deferred morabaha income 23 3,016,570

             
7,563,506

            
45,210,018

           
98,326,302

          

26 PROFIT PAYABLE
Redeemable capital - participatory and unsecured 95,005,325

           
95,092,002

          Subordinated funds 8,718,658
             

8,208,794
            

103,723,983
         

103,300,796
        

27 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Accrued expenses 27.1 28,500

                  
5,700,135

            Tax deducted at source 177,559
                

680,792
               Advances against ijarah / morabaha / musharikah 43,730,458

           
18,322,724

          Other payables 45,094,330
           

61,448,065
          

89,030,847
           

86,151,716
          

Expense chargeable in the statement of profit and loss  for the next year 

The Modaraba endeavours to ensure that liability under employee benefit scheme is covered by the Fund on any valuation date having 

regards to the various actuarial assumptions such as projected future salary increase, expected future contributions to the Fund, projected 

increase in liability associated with future service, etc.

Following are the significant risks associated with the staff retirement benefit scheme. These may include:

The risk of higher or lower withdrawal experience than assumed. The final effect could go either way 

depending on the beneficiaries' service/age distribution and the benefit.

The risk that the actual mortality experience is different. The effect depends on the beneficiaries' service / 

age distribution and the benefit.

The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what we assumed. Since the 

benefit is calculated on the final salary, the benefit amount increases similarly.

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
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27.1 This includes an amount of Rs. nil  (2023: Rs. 4,916,835) in respect of rent of 

head office payable to Punjab Modaraba Services (Pvt.) Limited - Modaraba 

Management Company.



28 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

28.1 Contingencies

28.1.1 Proceedings under section 62 and 135 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 1979 - Tax Years 1997-1998 & 1998-1999

28.1.2 Proceedings under section 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 - Tax Year 2003

28.1.3 Proceedings under section 122(5A) of the Ordinance - Tax Year 2005

28.1.4 Proceedings under section 182(1) of the Ordinance - Tax Year 2021

28.2 Commitments

28.2.1 There are no Ijarah commitments approved but not disbursed as on reporting date (2023: nil).
28.2.2 Morabaha commitments approved but not disbursed as on reporting date amount to Rs. Nil (2023: nil).
28.2.3

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

29 INCOME FROM IJARAH RENTALS
Ijarah income 104,436,222

         

126,042,625

        
Less: Depreciation on ijarah assets 5.1 (49,591,417)

          

(85,524,307)

         
54,844,805

           

40,518,318

          

The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR), while finalizing assessments for the assessment years 1997-1998 and 1998-1999 passed

orders dated 24 February 2004 and 29 April 2002 under sections 62 and 135 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 1979 (the "Ordinance"). The

DCIR made certain add backs on account of profit and loss expenses and completed the assessment at net income of Rs. 72,070,564. Being

aggrieved with the decision of the DCIR, the Modaraba filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) (CIR (A)) against

the said orders. The CIR (A) vide order dated 30 April 2005 upheld the orders of the DCIR. Being aggrieved with the decision of CIR (A),

the Modaraba filed second appeal before the Appellant Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR), who decided the case in favor of the Modaraba
and disposed of the appeal. The income tax department has filed a reference before Lahore High Court, Lahore. The Lahore High Court,

Lahore heard the appeal and remanded back the case to the Appellant Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) vide Order PTR No.208/2008 

dated 26 November 2020. However, till date no notice has been received from ATIR in this respect. 

The Additional Commissioner/Taxation Officer issued order dated 29 December 2008 under section 122(5A) of the Ordinance while rejecting

the exemption claimed from tax under Clause 100 of Part I of Second Schedule to the Ordinance and making additions on account of

provision for bad debts in the taxable income of the Modaraba, which resulted in a tax liability of Rs. 27,410,608. The Modaraba filed a

rectification application under section 221 of the Ordinance contesting that the Addl. CIR charged tax at the rate of 35% whereas applicable

rate in case of Modaraba is 25%. Thus, a rectification Order was passed dated 31 January 2009, reducing the tax liability to Rs. 14,580,110.

The Modaraba also filed appeal before the CIR (A), who accepted the claim of exemption and issued a favorable decision vide Order No. 31

dated 27 June 2009 by deleting the entire rectified tax liability of Rs. 14,580,110. The income tax department has filed a second appeal before

ATIR against the order of CIR (A), which was decided in favor of the Modaraba. The income tax department has filed a reference before

Lahore High Court, Lahore which is pending adjudication. We are hopeful that the matter will be decided in favor of the Modaraba. 

The Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (Addl. CIR) issued order dated 29 December 2008 under section 122(5A) of the Ordinance

while rejecting the exemption claimed from tax under Clause 100 of Part I of Second Schedule to the Ordinance, which resulted in a tax

liability of Rs. 17,667,886. The Modaraba has filed a rectification application contesting that the Addl. CIR has charged tax at the rate of 35%

whereas applicable rate in case of taxpayer company is 25% which is pending till date. Moreover, taxpayer company has also filed appeal to

the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeal) [CIR (A)] against the order passed under section 122(5A) of the Ordinance, who accepted the

claim of exemption and issued a favorable decision vide order No. 49 dated 28 May 2012 by deleting the entire tax liability of Rs. 17,667,886.

The income tax department has filed an appeal before the ATIR against the order of CIR (A), which has been decided in favor of the

Modaraba. The income tax department has filed a reference before the Lahore High Court, Lahore which is pending adjudication. 

The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) issued Show Cause Notice dated 20 June 2022 under section 182(1) of the ordinance, the

Modaraba has duly made compliance however, the DCIR issued the order dated 13 October 2022 and created the tax demand amounting to

Rs. 710,000. Being dissatisfied with the order passed by the DCIR, the Modaraba preferred an appeal before CIR (Appeals). The CIR (A) vide

order dated 28 December 2023 disposed of the appeal and remanded back the case to the department. The department has not initiated

remand back proceedings till date. 

Musharikah commitments approved but not disbursed as on reporting date amount to Rs. Nil (2023: nil).

69Annual Report 2024



30 GAIN FROM SALE OF DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES

Revenue from contract with customers 27,050,000           17,300,000          
Cost of revenue (24,385,411)          (14,712,623)         

Net gain 2,664,589             2,587,377            

31 GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF ASSETS

Gain on disposal of non-banking assets 260,331                620,000               
Gain on disposal of assets in use 5.2.3 2,562,468             1,000,000            
Gain on disposal of Ijarah assets 11,702,618           3,604,014            

14,525,417           5,224,014            

32 OTHER INCOME

Profit on bank deposits 82,603,116           63,355,147          
Processing fee 1,768,569             935,279               
Advising fee 1,117,512             14,000                 
Documentation charges 1,531,850             -                           
Cheque return charges 1,169,500             1,731,000            
Gain on disposal of subsidiary -                        8,987,000            
Gain on settlement of musharikah 1,111,121             1,241,336            
Gain / (loss) on settlement of morabaha 9,059,005             (390,389)              
Other payable written back -                        2,094,624            
Miscellaneous income 12,812,765           1,182,548            

111,173,438         79,150,545          

33 ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits 33.1 50,455,005           40,587,311          

Traveling and conveyance 380,201                409,699               

Legal and professional 3,673,199             4,655,188            

Printing and stationary 1,611,903             1,881,795            

Insurance 3,738,759             4,234,341            

Fee and subscription 2,605,758             3,650,470            

Auditor's remuneration 33.2 855,000                1,004,800            

Repair and maintenance 2,364,037             2,711,578            

Vehicle running and maintenance 1,394,485             1,174,753            

Power and utilities 3,313,573             2,456,500            

Entertainment 1,438,580             1,295,636            

Debit balance no more recoverable / adjustable written off 8,972,153             2,121,512            

Advertisement 108,400                167,000               

Telephone and postage 1,470,718             1,077,795            

Corporate expenses 799,858                510,261               

Rent, rates and taxes 33.3 6,108,308             5,577,778            

Selling and marketing expenses 3,670,826             1,022,007            

Computerization expense 1,244,389             48,374                 

Depreciation - assets in own use 5.2 1,261,022             1,538,885            

Amortization of intangible assets 6.2 667,275                666,643               

Miscellaneous expenses 2,329,361             3,199,874            

98,462,810           79,992,200          
33.1 This includes contribution of Rs. 1,273,231 (2023: Rs. 1,120,446) to the staff

provident fund and expense in respect of unfunded gratuity scheme amounting

to Rs. 2,449,387  (2023: Rs. 2,789,118).

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
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Annual audit fee 500,000                500,000               
Half yearly review 250,000                250,000               
Out of pocket expense -                        184,800               
Certification fee 105,000                70,000                 

855,000                1,004,800            
33.3 This includes an amount of Rs. 5,363,820 (2023: Rs. 4,916,835) in respect of rent of head office.

34 FINANCE COST

Financial charges on redeemable capital 277,115,647         349,869,167        
Financial charges on subordinated funds 93,304,932

           
8,208,794

            
Bank charges 191,426

                
312,935

               
370,612,005 358,390,896

35 (REVERSAL) / PROVISION AGAINST MORABAHA AND MUSHARIKAH INVESTMENT

(Reversal) / provision against morabaha investments - net 35.1 (4,430,833)
            

(9,044,500)
           (Reversal) / provision against musharikah investments - net 35.2 (14,168,710)

          
(1,666,373)

           

35.1 (Reversal) / provision against morabaha investments - net

Charge / (reversal) of provision as per prudential regulations
Expected credit losses against long term morabaha investment -

                        
-

                       Expected credit losses against short term morabaha investment 11.3 1,343,745

             
(9,044,500)

           Expected credit losses against principal due but not received -

                        

-

                       Expected credit losses against morabaha profit receivable -

                        

-

                       1,343,745

             

(9,044,500)

           (Reversal) / allowance for expected credit loss on adoption of IFRS 9
Expected credit losses against long term morabaha investment 8.6 (3,581,549)

            

-

                       Expected credit losses against short term morabaha investment 11.3 (5,437,762)

            

-

                       Expected credit losses against principal due but not received 12.2 3,546,130

             

-

                       Expected credit losses against morabaha profit receivable (301,397)

               

-

                       (5,774,578)

            

-

                       Total (Reversal) / provision against morabaha investments - net (4,430,833)

            

(9,044,500)

           
35.2 (Reversal) / provision against musharikah investments - net

Charge / (reversal) of provision as per prudential regulations

Expected credit losses against long term musharikah investment -

                        

-

                       
Expected credit losses against principal due but not received 12.1 1,421,319

             

(1,666,373)

           
Expected credit losses against musharikah profit receivable -

                        

-

                       
1,421,319

             

(1,666,373)

           
(Reversal) / allowance for expected credit loss on adoption of IFRS 9

Expected credit losses against long term musharikah investment 7.8 (15,578,415)

          

-

                       
Expected credit losses against principal due but not received 12.1 617,683

                

-

                       
Expected credit losses against musharikah profit receivable 16.4 (629,297)

               

-

                       
(15,590,029)

          

-

                       
Total (Reversal) / provision against musharikah investments - net (14,168,710)

          

(1,666,373)

           36 LEVIES

- For the year               5,372,086 4,365,946

            

- Prior period                           -   3,403,930

            

5,372,086

             

7,769,876

            This represents portion of minimum tax paid under section 113, final tax on builders & developers under section 100D and final tax on dividend income 

under section 150 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (ITO, 2001), representing levy in terms of requirements of IFRIC 21/IAS 37.
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33.2 Auditors’ remuneration

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

16.2



37 INCOME TAX

Current                           -                            -   

Deferred income tax credit 10             15,336,569          (49,513,360)

            15,336,569          (49,513,360)

37.1

5,372,086
             4,365,946

            
-

                        
-

                       
(5,372,086)

            
(4,365,946)

           

-
                        

-
                       

37.2

37.3

37.4

38 LOSS PER CERTIFICATE - BASIC AND DILUTED

38.1 Basic loss per certificate

Loss after taxation for the year (Rupees) (94,164,903)

          

(109,354,522)

       
Weighted average number of ordinary certificates outstanding during the year (Numbers) 34,020,000

           

34,020,000

          Loss per certificate - basic and diluted (Rupees) (2.77)

                     

(3.21)

                    38.2 Diluted

39 SALARIES, ALLOWANCES AND OTHER BENEFITS

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for remuneration to officers and other employees of the Modaraba is as follows:

2024

Officers Other Total
 employees 

Note Rupees Rupees Rupees

Remuneration 4,287,894

        

16,129,188

           

20,417,082

          
Bonus 1,302,675

        

2,897,485

             

4,200,160

            
House rent allowance 1,715,160

        

6,407,230

             

8,122,390

            
Utility allowance 428,790

           

1,601,848

             

2,030,638

            
Medical allowance 428,790

           

1,601,848

             

2,030,638

            

Reconciliation of current tax charge charged as per tax laws for the year,
with current tax recognized in the profit and loss account, is as follows:

The Modaraba computes tax based on the generally accepted interpretations of

the tax laws to ensure that sufficient provision for the purpose of taxation is

available. During the year, Finance Act, 2024 enacted a turnover tax rate of

1.25% (2023: 1.25%) and the normal tax rate of 29% (2023: 29%), therefore,

provision for the current tax is made @ 1.25% (2023: 1.25%) of the income /

turnover. The deferred tax is computed at the rate of 29% (2023: 29%).

No figure for diluted earnings per certificate has been presented as the Modaraba has not issued any instruments which would have an 

impact on loss / earnings per certificate when exercised.

Current tax liability for the year as per applicable tax laws

Portion of current tax liability as per tax laws, representing income tax under IAS12 

Portion of current tax computed as per tax laws, representing levy in terms of 

requirements of IFRIC 21/IAS 37

The aggregate of minimum / final tax and income tax amounting to Rs. 5.372

million (2023: Rs. 4.366 million) represents tax liability of the Modaraba

calculated under the relevant provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Provision for taxation has been made in accordance with section 113, 100D, etc

of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. There is no relationship between aggregate

income tax expense and accounting profit before income tax. Accordingly, no

numerical reconciliation is presented.
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2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees



Provident fund contribution 343,971           929,260                1,273,231            

Gratuity 24.3 514,408           1,934,979             2,449,387            

Expenses reimbursed 3,492,103        3,066,432             6,558,535            

12,513,791      34,568,270           47,082,061          

Number of employees at the year end     2 38 40

Average no of employees 3 39 42

39.1

2023
Officers Other Total

 employees 

Note Rupees Rupees Rupees

Remuneration 5,919,723        11,277,564           17,197,287          

Bonus 961,638           1,501,221             2,462,859            

House rent allowance 2,367,889        4,513,015             6,880,904            

Utility allowance 591,972           1,128,254             1,720,226            

Medical allowance 591,972           1,128,254             1,720,226            

Provident fund contribution 385,573           734,873                1,120,446            

Gratuity 24.3 960,082           1,829,036             2,789,118            

Expenses reimbursed 3,637,437        3,058,808             6,696,245            

15,416,286      25,171,025           40,587,311          

Number of employees at the year end 4 35 39

Average number of employees 4 36 40

The chief financial officer has been provided a vehicle on Ijarah.
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Follow
ing are the related parties of the M

odaraba:
2024

2023
N

am
e of related parties

N
ature of relationship

B
asis of relationship

The B
ank O

f P
unjab

H
olding C

om
pany of M

odaraba M
anagem

ent C
om

pany
C

om
m

on M
anagem

ent and C
ontrol / U

ltim
ate parent

0.01%
0.01%

P
unjab M

odaraba S
ervices (P

vt.) Lim
ited

A
ssociate

M
odaraba M

anagem
ent C

om
pany

39.16%
39.16%

The B
ank O

f P
unjab E

m
ployees G

ratuity Fund
A

ssociate
C

om
m

on M
anagem

ent
14.99%

14.99%

First P
unjab M

odaraba E
m

ployees P
rovident Fund Trust

A
ssociate

C
om

m
on M

anagem
ent

-
                                 

-
                                  

B
O

P
 E

xchange (P
vt.) Lim

ited
A

ssociate
C

om
m

on M
anagem

ent
-

                                 
-

                                  

M
r. M

udassar K
aiser P

al
K

ey m
anagem

ent personnel
K

ey m
anagem

ent personnel
-

                                 
-

                                  

M
r. S

aqib S
ham

im
K

ey m
anagem

ent personnel
K

ey m
anagem

ent personnel
-

                                 
-

                                  

M
r. Zeeshan A

hm
ed

K
ey m

anagem
ent personnel

K
ey m

anagem
ent personnel

-
                                 

-
                                  

M
r. A

m
ir A

ftab
K

ey m
anagem

ent personnel
K

ey m
anagem

ent personnel
-

                                 
-

                                  

40.1
T

ransactions w
ith the related parties

2024
2023

N
am

es of related parties
R

elationship
N

ature of transactions 
R

upees
R

upees

The B
ank of P

unjab
-

                                 
310,000,000

                   

-
                                 

1,800,000,000
                

R
edeem

ed during the year
-

                                 
2,450,000,000
                

S
ubordinated funds received during the year

-
                                 

500,000,000
                   

P
rofit paid on certificates of m

usharikah
369,997,392

                  
283,186,845

                   

P
rofit earned from

 bank accounts m
aintained w

ith B
O

P
2,448,961

                      
4,412,751

                       

S
ale of subsidiary - sales proceed

-
                                 

85,487,000
                     

G
ain on sale of subsidiary com

pany
-

                                 
8,987,000

                       

P
unjab M

odaraba S
ervices (P

vt.) Lim
ited

M
odaraba M

anagem
ent C

om
pany

R
ent expense of head office prem

ises
5,363,820

                      
4,916,835

                       

S
ale of office chair &

 laptop
28,500

                           
-

                                  

K
ey M

anagem
ent P

ersonnel
K

ey M
anagem

ent P
ersonnel

R
em

uneration of key m
anagem

ent personnel
12,513,791

                    
15,416,286

                     

S
taff loans disbursed during the year

6,375,000
                      

2,698,262
                       

S
taff loans repaid during the year

9,138,688
                      

2,130,083
                       

P
unjab C

apital S
ecurities (P

rivate) Lim
ited

S
ubsidiary C

om
pany

D
ividend received during the year

-
                                 

4,319,384
                       

First P
unjab M

odaraba E
m

ployees P
rovident Fund Trust

A
ssociate

P
rovident fund contributions paid to the fund

2,546,462
                      

2,216,087
                       

D
irect certificate holding in %

age

The M
odaraba enters into transactions w

ith related parties in the ordinary course of business and on substantially the sam
e term

s as for com
parable transactions w

ith person of sim
ilar standing. T

ransactions w
ith related parties and 

associated undertakings other than rem
uneration and benefits to key m

anagem
ent personnel under the term

 of em
ploym

ent are as follow
s:

H
olding C

om
pany of M

odaraba C
om

pany
R

edeem
able capital - participatory and unsecured 

received during the year

R
edeem

able capital - participatory and unsecured  rolled 

over during the year
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40.2
B

alances w
ith the related parties

2024
2023

N
am

es of related parties
R

elationship
N

ature of balances
R

upees
R

upees

The B
ank of P

unjab
R

edeem
able capital - participatory and unsecured 

1,485,000,000
               

1,485,000,000
                

P
rofit payable on redeem

able capital - participatory and 

unsecured
95,005,325

                    
95,092,002

                     

S
ubordinated funds / loans

500,000,000
                  

500,000,000
                   

P
rofit payable on subordinate funds / loans

8,718,658
                      

8,208,794
                       

O
utstanding M

odaraba certificates
47,880

                           
47,880

                            

B
ank accounts m

aintained w
ith B

O
P

19,026,432
                    

28,973,167
                     

The B
ank of P

unjab 

   E
m

ployees G
ratuity Fund

A
ssociate

O
utstanding M

odaraba certificates 
50,995,000

                    
50,995,000

                     

P
unjab M

odaraba S
ervices (P

vt.) Lim
ited

M
odaraba M

anagem
ent C

om
pany

O
utstanding M

odaraba certificates 
133,206,940

                  
133,206,940

                   

H
ead office rent payable

-
                                 

4,916,835
                       

K
ey M

anagem
ent P

ersonnel
K

ey M
anagem

ent P
ersonnel

O
utstanding

loan
under

m
usharikah

and
ijarah

arrangem
ents  during the period

8,662,553
                      

8,019,579
                       

First P
unjab M

odaraba E
m

ployees P
rovident Fund Trust

A
ssociate

A
dvance against m

onthly contribution 
2,418,150

                      
2,349,847

                       

40.3
N

o rem
uneration has been paid by the M

odaraba to the chief executive and directors of M
odaraba M

anagem
ent C

om
pany (2023: nil).

40.4
The M

odaraba carries out transactions w
ith related parties at com

m
ercial term

s and conditions as per the M
odaraba's policy.

40.5
A m

obile phone w
as sold to E

x C
E

O
 M

r. A
m

ir M
alik, retired during the year, am

ounting to R
s. 22,329.

H
olding C

om
pany of 

M
odaraba's M

anagem
ent C

om
pany
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41 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Carrying value Amortized cost Total
Financial assets Rupees Rupees Rupees

Long term musharikah investment - secured 690,449,778            690,449,778      -                          690,449,778     
Long term morabaha investment - secured 6,927,036                6,927,036          -                          6,927,036         
Long term security deposits 1,422,494                1,422,494          -                          1,422,494         
Short term morabaha investment - secured 136,052,103            136,052,103      -                          136,052,103     
Current maturity of long term investment 430,279,088            430,279,088      -                          430,279,088     
Ijarah rental receivable 76,994,055              76,994,055        -                          76,994,055       
Short term investment 109,816,508            109,816,508      -                          109,816,508     
Profit and other receivables 134,118,552            134,118,552      -                          134,118,552     
Cash and bank balances 23,080,100              23,080,100        -                          23,080,100       

1,609,139,715         1,609,139,715   -                          1,609,139,715  

Financial liabilities 

Subordinated funds 500,000,000            500,000,000      -                          500,000,000     
Redeemable capital - participatory and unsecured 1,485,000,000         1,485,000,000   -                          1,485,000,000  
Profit payable 103,723,983            103,723,983      -                          103,723,983     
Trade and other payables 45,122,830              45,122,830        -                          45,122,830       
Unclaimed dividend 17,114,040              17,114,040        -                          17,114,040       

2,150,960,853         2,150,960,853   -                          2,150,960,853  

Carrying value Amortized cost Total
Financial assets Rupees Rupees Rupees

Long term musharikah investment - secured 458,544,566            458,544,566      -                          458,544,566     
Long term morabaha investment - secured 13,502,006              13,502,006        -                          13,502,006       
Long term security deposits 203,444                   203,444             -                          203,444            
Short term morabaha investment - secured 173,447,518            173,447,518      -                          173,447,518     
Current maturity of long term investment 369,755,675            369,755,675      -                          369,755,675     
Ijarah rental receivable 111,362,665            111,362,665      -                          111,362,665     
Short term investment 350,000,000            350,000,000      -                          350,000,000     
Profit and other receivables 148,162,484            148,162,484      -                          148,162,484     
Cash and bank balances 233,544,957            233,544,957      -                          233,544,957     

1,858,523,315         1,858,523,315   -                          1,858,523,315  

Financial liabilities 

Subordinated funds 500,000,000            500,000,000      -                          500,000,000     
Redeemable capital - participatory and unsecured 1,485,000,000         1,485,000,000   -                          1,485,000,000  
Profit payable 103,300,796            103,300,796      -                          103,300,796     
Trade and other payables 67,148,200              67,148,200        -                          67,148,200       
Unclaimed dividend 17,190,484              17,190,484        -                          17,190,484       

2,172,639,480         2,172,639,480   -                          2,172,639,480  

42 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
43.1 Risk management policies

-Credit Risk
-Liquidity Risk
-Market Risk

Rupees

As at December 31, 2024
Fair value

Rupees

As at December 31, 2023 
Fair value

The Board's policy is to maintain a sound capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Board

of Directors of management company monitors the return on capital, which the Modaraba defines as net profit after taxation divided by total Certificate holders' equity. The

Board of Directors also monitors the level of dividend to ordinary Certificate holders. There were no changes to the Modaraba's approach to capital management during the year

and the Modaraba is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

The Modaraba is experiencing accumulated losses exceeding fifty percent of the total amount subscribed by holders of the Modaraba Certificates. This situation violates Section

23 of the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980. To address this issue, the Modaraba took action by obtaining a subordinated loan from

The Bank of Punjab. This subordinated loan likely provided additional capital to the Modaraba, which could help mitigate the impact of the accumulated losses and bring it back

into compliance with regulatory requirements.

The Modaraba's objective in managing risks is the creation and protection of Certificate holders’ value. Risk is inherent in the Modaraba's activities, but it is managed

through a process of ongoing identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. The process of risk management is critical to the

Modaraba's continuing profitability. The Modaraba is exposed to market risk (which includes profit rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk arising from the

financial instruments it holds.

The Modaraba primarily invests in lease financing assets, diminishing musharikah, morabaha and short-term investments. Such investments are subject to varying

degrees of risk, which emanates from various factors that include but are not limited to:

76Annual Report 2024



Exposure to credit risk

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

Long term musharikah investment - secured 7 690,449,778           458,544,566     
Long term morabaha investment - secured 8 6,927,036               13,502,006       
Long term deposits 9 1,422,494               203,444            
Short term morabaha investment - secured 11 136,052,103           173,447,518     
Current maturity of long term investment 12 430,279,088           369,755,675     
Ijarah rental receivable 13 76,994,055             111,362,665     
Short term investments 14 109,816,508           350,000,000     
Profit and other receivables 16 134,118,552           148,162,484     
Bank balances 17 23,033,536             233,272,466     

1,609,093,151        1,858,250,824  

Credit risk ratings and collaterals held

Bank balances

The credit risk rating of the banks and their respective balances are given below:

2024 2023
 Rupees  Rupees 

Banks Short Term Long Term  Agency 

The Bank of Punjab A1+ AA+ PACRA 19,029,303             14,296,268       
Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited A1 A+ VIS 14,009                    14,009              
National Bank of Pakistan A1+ AAA PACRA -                          1,797                
NRSP Microfinance Bank Limited A2 A- PACRA 206,038                  1,382,743         
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited A1 AA- PACRA 3,766,985               217,475,790     
U Microfinance Bank Limited  A1 A+ PACRA -                          1,885                
State Bank of Pakistan - - - 17,201                    99,974              

23,033,536             233,272,466     

Collaterals

Concentration of credit risk

Aviation and transport       108,235,874                              -         419,544,053             527,779,927 30%
Others              246,800               38,890,915       170,940,247             210,077,962 12%
Textile spinning and composite              100,000             189,926,241           2,113,332             192,139,573 11%
Individuals         61,668,300               31,500,000       456,719,310             549,887,610 32%
Engineering, steel & construction           4,520,000               71,388,880         48,861,647             124,770,527 7%
Sugar and allied                        -                 50,071,426                        -                50,071,426 3%
Food and allied         10,456,874                              -           24,871,096              35,327,970 2%
Oil and gas                        -                 15,411,239           3,821,861              19,233,100 1%
Chemical and pharmaceuticals                        -                      215,320         20,524,660              20,739,980 1%
Electric goods                        -                 13,023,643                        -                13,023,643 1%

      185,227,848             410,427,664    1,147,396,206          1,743,051,718 100%

Credit risk is the risk that the counter party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the Modaraba by failing to discharge an obligation. The Modaraba's

policy is to enter into financial contracts with reputable counter parties in accordance with the internal guidelines and regulatory requirements. The Modaraba seeks to

manage its credit risk exposure through diversification of ijarah activities to avoid undue concentrations of risks with individuals or groups of customers in specific

locations of businesses. Modaraba also obtains security deposits when appropriate. Cash at banks are held only with reputable banks with high quality credit

worthiness.

The maximum exposure to credit risk before any credit enhancements as of reporting date is the carrying amount of the financial assets as set out below:

The Modaraba does not hold any collateral from the counter parties against balances with banks and these are unsecured. The assets leased out by the Modaraba

under ijarah arrangements are secured as the title to the asset is held by the Modaraba. Security deposits / lease key money is also kept against these arrangements.

Musharikah and morabaha investments are secured against registered vehicles and equipment in the name of Modaraba, personal guarantees and post dated

cheques.

Concentration is the relative sensitivity of the Modaraba’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry or geographical location. Concentration of risks

arise when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into with the same counterparty, or where a number of counterparties are engaged in similar

business activities, or activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be

similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. 
The Modaraba’s portfolio of financial assets is broadly diversified and transactions are entered into with diverse credit worthy counterparties thereby mitigating any

significant concentration of credit risk. Modaraba's concentration of credit risk by industrial distribution is detailed as follows:
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43.2 Credit risk

Ijarah Assets  Morabaha 
investments 

 Musharikah 
investments 

 Total  Sector% 

2024

Rupees



Aviation and transport         43,321,729                              -         315,322,120             358,643,849 26%
Others           8,518,840               26,646,298       205,933,446             241,098,584 17%
Textile spinning and composite              100,000             217,584,601           2,146,390             219,830,991 15%
Individuals         42,983,977               31,500,000       172,085,755             246,569,732 18%
Engineering, steel & construction         42,520,000               77,222,218         63,144,323             182,886,541 13%
Sugar and allied                        -                 53,360,822                        -                53,360,822 4%
Food and allied         10,456,873                              -           24,480,405              34,937,278 3%
Oil and gas                        -                 14,887,446           7,870,900              22,758,346 2%
Chemical and pharmaceuticals              166,800                    215,320         14,261,709              14,643,829 1%
Electric goods                        -                 13,023,643                        -                13,023,643 1%

      148,068,219             434,440,348       805,245,048          1,387,753,615 100%

43.3 Liquidity Risk

Mitigating / managing the risk

Contractual maturity of the financial assets and financial liabilities of the Modaraba:

Carrying 
Amount

Contractual 
cash flow

 Six months or less  Six to twelve 
months 

 Over five years 

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Non-derivative financial assets

Long term musharikah investment-secured 1,147,396,206   1,147,396,206   290,080,283            134,638,196      691,163,608           31,514,119       
Morabaha investment - secured 415,061,994      415,061,994      405,496,963            2,597,689          6,967,342               -                    
Long term deposits 1,422,494          1,422,494          -                          -                    -                          1,422,494         

Ijarah rental receivable 157,298,808      157,298,808      157,298,808            -                    -                          -                    
Short term investment 109,816,508      109,816,508      109,816,508            -                    -                          -                    
Profit and other receivables 223,621,355      223,621,355      223,621,355            -                    -                          -                    

Cash and bank balances 23,080,100        23,080,100        23,080,100              -                    -                          -                    
2,077,697,465   2,077,697,465   1,209,394,017         137,235,885      698,130,950           32,936,613       

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Subordinated funds 500,000,000      500,000,000      -                          -                    500,000,000           -                    
Redeemable capital - participatory
and unsecured 1,485,000,000   1,485,000,000   -                          -                    1,485,000,000        -                    
Profit payable 103,723,983      103,723,983      103,723,983            -                    -                          -                    
Trade and other payables 45,122,830        45,122,830        45,122,830              -                    -                          -                    
Unclaimed profit 17,114,040        17,114,040        17,114,040              -                    -                          -                    

2,150,960,853   2,150,960,853   165,960,853            -                    1,985,000,000        -                    

On-balance sheet gap (73,263,388)       (73,263,388)       1,043,433,164         137,235,885      (1,286,869,050)       32,936,613       

Non-derivative financial assets
Long term musharikah investment-secured 805,245,048      805,245,048      154,889,530            191,810,952      113,248,188           345,296,378     
Morabaha investment - secured 447,885,515      447,885,515      419,654,757            14,728,752        13,502,006             -                    
Long term deposits 203,444             203,444             -                          -                    -                          203,444            
Ijarah rental receivable 189,621,155      189,621,155      189,621,155            -                    -                          -                    
Short term investment 350,000,000      350,000,000      350,000,000            -                    -                          -                    
Deposits and other receivables 215,478,820      215,478,820      215,478,820            -                    -                          -                    
Cash and bank balances 233,544,957      233,544,957      233,544,957            -                    -                          -                    

2,241,978,939   2,241,978,939   1,563,189,219         206,539,704      126,750,194           345,499,822     

Rupees

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Modaraba will not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to settle its obligations in full as they fall due or can only do so on terms

that are materially disadvantageous. In the case of Modaraba, the liquidity level of Modaraba remained on satisfactory level during the year and Modaraba did not face

any difficulty or problem for generation of liquidity.

Modaraba’s policy is to invest the majority of its assets in investments that includes term deposit and morabaha investments that are having short-term maturities. Only

a limited proportion of its investments are of long-term in nature

2024
 Two to five years 

Carrying Amount Contractual cash 

flow

 Six months or less  Six to twelve 

months 

 Over five years 

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

2023
 Two to five years 

Rupees
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Ijarah Assets  Morabaha 
investments 

 Musharikah 
investments 

 Total  Sector% 

2023

Rupees



Non-derivative financial liabilities

Subordinated funds 500,000,000      500,000,000      -                          -                    500,000,000           -                    

Redeemable capital - participatory

and unsecured 1,485,000,000   1,485,000,000   -                          -                    1,485,000,000        -                    
Profit payable 103,300,796      103,300,796      103,300,796            -                    -                          -                    
Trade and other payables 67,148,200        67,148,200        67,148,200              -                    -                          -                    
Unclaimed profit 17,190,484        17,190,484        17,190,484              -                    -                          -                    

2,172,639,480   2,172,639,480   187,639,480            -                    1,985,000,000        -                    

On-balance sheet gap 69,339,459        69,339,459        1,375,549,739         206,539,704      (1,858,249,806)       345,499,822     

43.4 Market Risk

43.4.1 Currency risk

43.4.2 Price risk

43.4.3 Profit rate risk

2024 2023
Assets  Notes  Rupees  Rupees 

Variable rate instruments

Musharikah financing          1,147,396,206       805,245,048 

Bank deposits              13,887,442       222,551,331 

Short term investments             109,816,508       350,000,000 

         1,271,100,156    1,377,796,379 

Fixed rate instruments

Morabaha financing             410,427,664       434,440,348 

         1,681,527,820    1,812,236,727 

Liabilities

Fixed rate instruments

Redeemable capital - participatory and unsecured          1,485,000,000    1,485,000,000 

Subordinated funds             500,000,000       500,000,000 

         1,985,000,000    1,985,000,000 

Fair value sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments 

The risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. The objective of market risk management is to

manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return on risk. Market risk comprise of three types of risks: currency risk,

profit / yield rate risk and price risk. The Modaraba manages market risk by monitoring its financial instruments as per the internal risk management policies. The

Modaraba is exposed to profit / yield rate risk only.

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to the changes in foreign currency exchange rates. The

Modaraba does not have any financial instrument in currencies other than the functional currency of the Modaraba, therefore, the Modaraba is not subject to currency 

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices (other than those arising from

interest rate risk or currency risk). The Modaraba does not have any investment traded in the market, therefore the Modaraba is not subject to price risk.

The fair values of traded instruments are based on quoted market prices. Fair value of future lease financing installments receivable against lease financing assets,

other assets, other liabilities and other items cannot be calculated with sufficient reliability due to absence of current active market for such assets and liabilities.

Profit rate risk arises from the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market profit rates on the fair value of financial assets and liabilities and future cash

flows. The Modaraba has ijarah lease, musharikah and morabaha financing portfolio. The majority of financing portfolio is linked with KIBOR rate as a benchmark. The

Modaraba reviews KIBOR on financing portfolio on quarterly / six monthly basis. As of reporting date, the profile of the Modaraba’s variable value financial instruments

were as follows:

An increase of 100 basis points in interest rates would have increased / decreased the profit and loss by the amounts shown below. Reduction in interest rates by 100

basis points would have a vice versa impact. This analysis assumes that all variables remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for the

comparative period.
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Carrying Amount Contractual cash 

flow

 Six months or less  Six to twelve 

months 

 Over five years 

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

2023
 Two to five years 

Rupees



Asset / liability class (having variable interest rates) Increase / (Decrease) Change in the profit / (loss)

2024 2023
Assets  Rupees  Rupees 

Musharikah financing  ± 100 basis points              11,473,962          8,052,450 

Bank deposits  ± 100 basis points                   138,874          2,225,513 

Short term investments  ± 100 basis points                1,098,165          3,500,000 

             12,711,001        13,777,963 

Risk Management / Mitigation

43.4.4 Operational risk

- Requirements for appropriate segregation of duties between various functions, roles and responsibilities;

- Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;

- Compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;

- Requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and procedures to address the risks identified;

- Ethical and business standards, and

- Risk mitigation, including takaful where this is effective.

Above sensitivities are calculated on the assumption that all factors remain constant except interest rates and resulting variation in fair values of the subjugated

investments and impact on the profit and loss.

The Modaraba monitors the interest rate environment on a regular basis and alters the portfolio mix of fixed and floating rate securities. The Modaraba’s policy requires

the Modaraba management to manage this risk by measuring the mismatch of the interest rate sensitivity gap of financial assets and liabilities and calculating the

average duration of the portfolio of fixed interest securities. The average effective duration of the Modaraba’s portfolio is a measure of the sensitivity of the fair value of

the Modaraba’s variable interest securities to changes in market interest rates. The Modaraba’s policy refrains from holding interest bearing instruments that induce the

average effective duration of the variable interest portfolio to pass the benchmark of the average duration.

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the processes, technology and infrastructure supporting the

Modaraba's operations either internally within the Modaraba or externally at the Modaraba's service providers, and from external factors other than credit, market and

liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of investment management behaviour. Operational risks

arise from all of the Modaraba's activities. The Modaraba's objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance limiting of financial losses and damage to its

reputation with achieving its objective of generating returns for certificate holders. The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls over

operational risk rests with the Board of Directors of the Modaraba Management Modaraba. This responsibility encompasses the controls in the following areas:
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M
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to
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assets
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a

fair
value

hierarchy
thatreflects

the
significance
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inputs

used
in

m
aking

the

m
easurem

ents. T
he fair value hierarchy has the follow

ing levels:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active m
arkets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
 prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable m
arket data (unobservable inputs).

A
s of reporting date, there w

ere no financial instrum
ents w

hich w
ere m

easured at fair values in these financial statem
ents.

D
uring the year, there w

ere no transfers betw
een level 1 and level 2 fair value m

easurem
ents, and no transfers into and out of level 3 fair value m

easurem
ent.

T
he follow

ing table show
s the carrying am

ounts and fair values of all financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy.

A
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b
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Financial A
sset at 

am
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O
ther Financial 

A
ssets

O
ther Financial 

Liabilities
Total

Level 1
Level 2

Level 3
Total

Financial assets
R

upees
R

upees
R

upees

Long term
 m

usharikah investm
ent - secured

458,544,566
          

-
                         

-
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-
                 

-
           

-
                   

-
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orabaha investm
ent - secured

13,502,006
            

-
                         

-
                         

13,502,006
            

-
                 

-
           

-
                   

-
              

Long term
 security deposits

203,444
                 

-
                         

-
                         

203,444
                 

-
                 

-
           

-
                   

-
              

S
hort term
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orabaha investm

ent - secured
173,447,518

          
-

                         
-

                         
173,447,518

          
-

                 
-

           
-

                   
-

              

C
urrent m

aturity of long term
 investm

ent
369,755,675

          
-

                         
-

                         
369,755,675

          
-

                 
-

           
-

                   
-

              

Ijarah rental receivable
111,362,665

          
-

                         
-

                         
111,362,665

          
-

                 
-

           
-

                   
-

              

S
hort term

 investm
ent

350,000,000
          

-
                         

-
                         

350,000,000
          

-
                 

-
           

-
                   

-
              

P
rofit and other receivables

148,162,484
          

-
                         

-
                         

148,162,484
          

-
                 

-
           

-
                   

-
              

C
ash and bank balances

233,544,957
          

-
                         

-
                         

233,544,957
          

-
                 

-
           

-
                   

-
              

1,858,523,315
       

-
                         

-
                         

1,858,523,315
       

-
                 

-
           

-
                   

-
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R
edeem

able capital - participatory and unsecured
-

                         
-

                         
1,485,000,000

       
1,485,000,000

       
-

                 
-

           
-

                   
-

              

P
rofit payable

-
                         

-
                         

103,300,796
          

103,300,796
          

-
                 

-
           

-
                   

-
              

Trade and other payables
-

                         
-

                         
67,148,200

            
67,148,200

            
-

                 
-

           
-

                   
-

              
U

nclaim
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-
                         

-
                         

17,190,484
            

17,190,484
            

-
                 

-
           

-
                   

-
              

-
                         

-
                         

1,672,639,480
       

1,672,639,480
       

-
                 

-
           

-
                   

-
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Figures of the corresponding period have been reclassified, w
herever necessary for com

parison and better presentation. M
ajor reclassifications m

ade during the year are as follow
s:

2024
2023

N
ote

R
upees

R
upees

46
C

ash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

C
ash and bank balances

17
23,080,100

    
233,544,957

    

The
internalreporting

provided
to

the
C

hiefE
xecutive

O
fficerfor

the
M

odaraba’s
assets,liabilities

and
perform

ance
is

prepared
on

a
consistentbasis

w
ith

the
m

easurem
entand

recognition
principles

ofthe

approved accounting standards as applicable in P
akistan.

The
M

odaraba
is

dom
iciled

in
P

akistan.
A

llof
the

M
odaraba’s

incom
e

is
from

investm
ents

in
entities

incorporated
in

P
akistan.

A
llnon-current

assets
of

the
M

odaraba
are

located
in

P
akistan

as
at

the

reporting date.

The M
odaraba revenue is not depending upon single custom

er and there is no single custom
er from

 w
hom

 m
odaraba is generating m

ore than 10%
 of total revenue.

A
s at D

ecem
ber 31, 2023 

C
arrying V

alue
Fair V

alue

The
M

odaraba
has

notdisclosed
the

fair
values

for
these

financialassets,as
these

are
either

shortterm
in

nature
or

repriced
periodically.Therefore,their

carrying
am

ounts
are

a
reasonable

approxim
ation of fair value.

A
s

per
IFR

S
8

-
'O

perating
S

egm
ents',

operating
segm

ents
are

reported
in

a
m

anner
consistent

w
ith

the
internalreporting

used
by

the
chief

operating
decision-m

aker.
The

chief
executive

officer
of

the

m
anagem

ent com
pany has been identified as the chief operating decision-m

aker, w
ho is responsible for allocating resources and assessing perform

ance of the operating segm
ents.

The
C

hiefE
xecutive

O
fficer

is
responsible

for
the

M
odaraba's

entire
productportfolio

and
considers

the
business

to
have

a
single

operating
segm

ent.The
M

odaraba's
assetallocation

decisions
are

based

on a single integrated investm
ent strategy and the M

odaraba's perform
ance is evaluated on an overall basis.
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2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees

47 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Loss for the period before income tax and levies (73,657,951)       (153,305,003)     

Adjustments for non cash other items:

Depreciation of ijarah assets 5.1 49,591,417         85,524,307         
Depreciation of assets in own use 5.2 1,261,022           1,538,885           
Amortization of intangible assets 6 667,275              666,643              
Loss on disposal of Ijarah assets 31 (11,702,618)       (3,604,014)         
Loss on disposal of assets in own use 31 (2,562,468)         (1,000,000)         
Loss on disposal of Musharikah investment 32 (1,111,121)         -                         
Loss on disposal of Morabaha investment 32 (9,059,005)         -                         
Loss on disposal of non-banking assets 31 (260,331)            -                         
Loss on disposal of development property 30 (2,664,589)         
Loss on disposal of subsidiary -                         (8,987,000)         
Provision for gratuity 2,449,387           2,789,118           
Provision / (Reversal)  for Ijarah rental receivables 13.1 1,723,382           (408,563)            
(Reversal)  for musharikah investment 12.1 (14,168,710)       (1,666,373)         
(Reversal) for morabaha investment 11.3 (4,430,833)         (9,044,500)         
Provision against other receivables 16.7 26,112,216         57,360,693         
Profit on bank deposits 32 (82,603,116)       (63,355,147)       
Bank charges 34 191,426              312,935              
Financial charges on redeemable capital and subordinated funds 34 370,420,578       358,077,961       

323,853,912       418,204,945       

Operating profit before working capital changes 250,195,961       264,899,942       

Working capital changes:

(Increase)/decrease in operating assets:

Ijarah rental receivables - net 13 32,322,347         33,617,856         
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 16 (29,981,629)       (78,442,575)       

2,340,718           (44,824,719)       
Increase in operating liabilities:
Trade and other payables 27 2,879,130           48,397,969         

Net changes in operating assets and operating liabilities 5,219,848           3,573,250           

Cash generated from operations 255,415,810       268,473,192       

48 CORRESPONDING FIGURES

December 31, 

2023

Rupees

Repair and maintenance Computerization expense                 48,374 

49 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE  

Figures of the corresponding period have been reclassified, wherever necessary for comparison and better presentation. Following figures were reclassified 

in these financial statements:

From To

The financial statements of Modaraba were approved by the Board of Directors of Modaraba Management Company and authorized for issue on

For Punjab Modaraba Services (Private) Limited
(Modaraba Company)

83Annual Report 2024

June 30, 2025  

______________________
Chief Financial Officer

______________________
Chief Executive Officer Director Director




